Public Document Pack
Mark Saccoccio
Town Clerk
01525 631920
info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk

Friday, 3 September 2021
To:
Members of the Cultural & Economic Committee (Councillors A Dodwell,
S Hemmings, K Cursons, D Bowater, G Perham, M Freeman, R Goodchild, P Snelling,
R Yates and D Scott)
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information)

NOTICE OF MEETING
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Cultural & Economic Committee to
be held on Monday, 13 September 2021 commencing at 7.30 pm in the Council
Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton
THIS MEETING MAY
Buzzard LU7 1HD.
BE RECORDED *

M Saccoccio
Town Clerk

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting.
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town
Clerk.

2.

APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR 2021-2022

3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure).

4.

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order

Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard LU7 1HD

CULTURAL & ECONOMIC COMMITTEE

Monday, 13 September 2021

No.s 3 (e) (f) (g) and (h).

Members of the public are very welcome to attend the meeting but are
asked to note that attendance numbers must be limited to mitigate for
Covid-19 risks. Please contact us to advise if you wish to attend before
4pm on the day of the meeting. Written representations may also be
submitted before 4pm on the day of the meeting.
5.

6.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS (Pages 1 - 6)
(a)

To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Cultural
and Economic Services Committee meeting held on 1 March 2021
(attached), in accordance with Standing Order 12.

(b)

To receive information updates on matters arising from the previous
meeting (if appropriate).

APPROVED DECISIONS MAY - AUGUST 2021 (Pages 7 - 8)
To formally note decisions made in the period 5 May – 27 June 2021 through
the agreed procedure of delegated authority to the Town Clerk with email
approval form at least a quorum of Members of the Council (attached).

7.

SUB-COMMITTEE AND TASK AND FINISH GROUPS (Pages 9 - 22)
(i)

To receive the draft minutes of the following meetings and to consider
any recommendations contained therein:
(a)
(b)
(c)

Older Persons Sub Committee 27 May 2021 (attached)
Market Sub Committee 5 August 2021 (attached)
Living History Event Task and Finish Group 24 March 2021
(attached)

Ref.11/LH: RECOMMENDED to the Cultural and Economic Services
Committee to endorse the change in approach from Living History
Day to the creation of an annual trail each October, with associated
activities.
Ref.11/LH: RECOMMENDED to the Cultural and Economic Services
Committee to consider use of earmarked reserves budget for the
provision of photographic displays.
(ii)

To consider whether the Living History Event Task and Finish Group
has fulfilled its purpose and if so, to approve as a correct record the
minutes of the meeting held 24 March 2021, to be signed by the Chair.

(iii)

To consider any changes to the terms of reference for SubCommittees.

CULTURAL & ECONOMIC COMMITTEE

8.

Monday, 13 September 2021

BARREL ORGAN THEATRE (Pages 23 - 36)
To receive a report presenting a proposal and request for funding from Barrel
Organ Theatre company and consider the recommendations therein (attached).

9.

55UP , OLDER PERSONS PROJECTS
To receive an update report on 55up work activities and consider the proposals
contained therein. (to follow)

10.

EVENTS UPDATE REPORT (Pages 37 - 50)
To receive an update on the community events programme and to consider the
proposals contained therein. (attached)

11.

TACTIC WORK UPDATE (Pages 51 - 72)
To receive an update report on TACTIC activities and consider the proposals
contained therein. (attached)

12.

SERVICE UPDATES (Pages 73 - 86)
To receive an updated report on Service activity and consider the proposals
contained therein (attached).

13.

BUDGET REPORT (Pages 87 - 98)
To receive an update report on service budgets inclusive of the half year
detailed income and consider the recommendations therein (attached).

14.

COMMITTEE WORK PLAN AND OBJECTIVES (Pages 99 - 102)
To receive and consider the draft workplan for 2021-2022 (attached)

15.

REVIEW OF PARTNERSHIP PROJECT LIST (Pages 103 - 106)
As part of the review requested by Partnership Committee in April 2021, to
review the Partnership Project List (attached) and consider any
recommendations to Council in respect of potential changes. The review terms
endorsed by Partnership Committee were:
The review will focus on removal of outdated objectives and aim to provide
direction in terms of priority projects. Any additions to the list will only be
permitted further to an endorsement by either Leighton Linslade Town Council
or Central Bedfordshire Council and/or where clear evidence of public
consultation can be demonstrated.

CULTURAL & ECONOMIC COMMITTEE

Monday, 13 September 2021

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member,
officer or member of the public. No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into
exempt session. The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control.

Agenda Item 5
LEIGHTON–LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL
MINUTES OF CULTURAL & ECONOMIC COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 MARCH 2021 AT 7.30 PM

77/CE

Present: Councillors

A Dodwell (Chair)
S Hemmings (Vice-Chair)
K Cursons
D Bowater
G Perham
M Freeman
R Goodchild
P Snelling
R Yates

Also in attendance:

M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
I Haynes (Head of Grounds & Environmental
Services)
V Cannon (Head of Cultural & Economic
Services)
S Sandiford, (Head of Democratic and Central
Services)
L Farmer, TACTIC Manager – part meeting
B Bodsworth, Town and Country Promotions
Manager – part meeting
F Khan, Town and Community Promotions
Officer
M Jahn, Committee Officer
Cllr Harvey
Cllr Berry

Members of the public:

1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
No apologies for absence had been received.

78/CE

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
No declarations of interest were made and no dispensations were
requested.

79/CE

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
A member of the public spoke to welcome the Town Council’s Equality and
Diversity Statement and asked how this would be publicised, so residents

Page 1

Page 36

Cultural & Economic Committee Meeting

Monday, 1 March 2021

were aware. It was agreed this could be made more visible around the town
to promote inclusion. Black History Month and COP26 were mentioned as
opportunities for planning events to highlight the Equality and Diversity
Statement. The member of the public was invited to stay and listen to further
discussions on items later in the meeting regarding these questions.
80/CE

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS
(a)

The Committee received the draft minutes of the previous Cultural and
Economic Services Committee meeting held on 7 December 2020.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Cultural and Economic Services
Committee meeting held on 7 December 2020 be approved as a correct
record, to be signed at a later date when safe to do so.
(b)

Minute reference 69/CE Older Persons Task and Finish Group –
Members were informed the recommendations regarding financial
commitment in the five year financial plan for older persons projects
had been endorsed by Policy & Finance Committee on 22 February
2021 and would now go to Council for final ratification on 26 April
2021.
Minute reference 74/CE Standing Items and General Updates – it was
confirmed Central Bedfordshire colleagues had been contacted to
seek alternative funding for the installation of a Changing Places
facility in the town centre and a reply was awaited.

81/CE

SUB-COMMITTEE MINUTES
(a)

The Committee received the draft minutes of the Older Persons SubCommittee meeting held on 4 February 2021 for consideration.

Members were informed the launch of the Helping Hands Website had
progressed and had been promoted in the local newspaper. The 55Up logo
was being used and included in About Town newsletter.
RESOLVED to receive the draft minutes of the Older Persons SubCommittee meeting held on 4 February 2021.
(b)

The Committee received the draft minutes of the Market Sub Committee
held on 25 February 2021.

RESOLVED to receive the draft minutes of the Market Sub-Committee
meeting held on 25 February 2021.
82/CE

WASTE MANAGEMENT
Committee received and considered a recommendation (minute reference
97/GE) from the Grounds and Environmental Services Committee meeting

Page 2

Page 37

Cultural & Economic Committee Meeting

Monday, 1 March 2021

held 14 December 2020 regarding promotion of waste collection information
and the future of further recycling opportuities on the market.
Concerns were raised regarding the recycling of crisp packets via the market
and how this could be improved to be more practical and accessible as a
council wide initiative. Members agreed the results achieved from the new
contract should be promoted and made available to the public via social
media and posters displayed using Town Council noticeboards.
Members were informed that The Head of Grounds & Environmental
Services would be meeting with Veolia to discuss a more robust solution to
crisp bag recycling and other recycling opportunities available. Once this
meeting had taken place the ideas could be taken forward to the next
appropriate meeting. It was suggested to come back to Policy & Finance
Committee with a Council wide proposal for recycling. Members agreed to
offer the crisp packet recycling via the Market until a more appropriate
proposal could be actioned.
RESOLVED to note the information.

83/CE

COMMUNITY EVENTS UPDATE
The Committee received a report to update members on the proposed
Events programme and outline plan for the 2021 season with the additional
complexities due to Covid-19 restrictions.
A roadmap of events had been set out but all plans would be made with as
much flexibility as possible to enable events to take place with appropriate
lead times which were needed in the current circumstances. Each roadmap
step would be reviewed prior to confirmation and draft recommendations had
been formulated with this in mind.
RESOLVED
(a)

(b)

(c)

To endorse the postponement of the Big Lunch from the first
weekend in June until 21 & 22 August and that it be a ticketed
activity in Parson’s Close Recreation Ground, subject to local or
national restrictions. Should restrictions permit, to delegate the
decision to the Town Clerk, Chair and Vice Chair of the Cultural &
Economic Services Committee to rescind the requirements for
tickets.
To endorse the cancellation of the Canal Festival in 2021 and
replace it with ticketed film screenings on 31 July and 1 August,
subject to local or national restrictions. A proportion of the
budget allocated for Canal Festival (101/4515) would be used to
deliver the film festival.
To endorse the proposal to hold the Band Concerts throughout
June to September and that it be a ticketed activity in Parson’s
Close Recreation Ground, subject to local and national

Page 3

Page 38

Cultural & Economic Committee Meeting

(d)

(e)

84/CE

Monday, 1 March 2021

restrictions. Should restrictions permit, to delegate the decision
to the Town Clerk, Chair and Vice Chair of the Cultural &
Economic Services Committee to rescind the requirements for
tickets.
To continue with the planning for the Last Night of the Proms
event subject to local and national restrictions. Should additional
restrictions be imposed on the event either locally or nationally,
to delegate the decision to the Town clerk, Chair & Vice Chair of
the Cultural & Economic Services Committee to cancel the event.
To continue with the planning of the Christmas Festival with a
final decision to be taken at the Cultural & Economic Services
Committee on the 14 June, 2021.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY STATEMENT
The Committee received and considered a recommendation from
Council’s meeting on 25 January 2021 for further discussion on the
Equality & Diversity Statement.
The statement had been included on the Town Council website and in the
March/April edition of the About Town newsletter. It was agreed that a
celebration of Black History Month would be included in the
September/October newsletter and Cop26 in the November/December
newsletter. A suggestion was made to take Black History Month to the next
meeting of the Living History Task and Finish Group for discussion and
consideration.
An idea for discussion in the future as a regular event was a Diversity Day
where inclusion could be explored and celebrated in the town.
RESOLVED to note the statement.

85/CE

TACTIC UPDATE
The Committee received a report providing an update of work at TACTIC
(Teenage Advice and Information Centre) in November, December 2020 and
January 2021 and future project work during the coming months. TACTIC
continue to experience on-going disruption due to the pandemic; however,
they had continued to offer support to the most vulnerable young people with
socially distanced one-to-one sessions. New initiatives were introduced with
workshops being offered for Sexual Health and Relationships and the Red
Box Project was set up offering free sanitary products. Future projects over
the coming months would include TANG (additional needs group), volunteer
training, return of youth drop-in sessions, 1-1 mentoring and Youth Forum
recruitment.
A question was raised regarding support for NEET children (Not in
Education, Employment or Training) and it was confirmed that staff would be
trained to offer careers guidance from April 2021 and then go into schools
with up-to-date information and guidance on apprenticeships and writing

Page 4

Page 39

Cultural & Economic Committee Meeting

Monday, 1 March 2021

CV’s.
Thanks were given to TACTIC staff for the comprehensive report and their
continued hard work with young people during this challenging time.
RESOLVED to endorse the TACTIC draft 2021/2022 Annual Work Plan,
as set out.

86/CE

CHRISTMAS LIGHTING SCHEME
This item was withdrawn from the agenda.

87/CE

BUDGET REPORT
The Committee received and considered an update report on service
budgets. Due to the on-going pandemic, it had not been possible to
deliver events in the normal way so some unused event budgets would be
moved to earmarked reserves for use in 2021/22 as required.
RESOLVED to endorse that existing spend commitments from
earmarked Reserves are continued into financial year 2021-22.

88/CE

STANDING ITEMS AND GENERAL UPDATES
The Committee received a general service update report to inform of work
activity over the past months.
Architectural Lighting
Officers await the outcome of the planning application for Waterbourne Walk
and Central Bedfordshire officers had confirmed acceptance to utilise funds
at alternative locations which would include the Flypast Monument at Bridge
Street and Town Centre trees. It was hoped this work would be completed
by Spring this year.
Electronic Sign
The transfer of the sign from the bypass to Hockliffe Road had been
accepted
by Central Bedfordshire Council and the remaining market town regeneration
grant funds and Council’s match funding monies would be used for this
transfer.
Changing Places
Officers had contacted Central Bedfordshire Council to request them to seek
alternative funding for the installation of a Changing Places Facility at the
multi-storey car park.

Page 5

Page 40

Cultural & Economic Committee Meeting

Monday, 1 March 2021

Pigeon Management Grant Scheme
Twelve business applications had been received with a total of 18 buildings
being highlighted. Some schemes may require listed building consent. This
may cause a delay in completion of works so the publicised completion date
of 30th April 2021 would need to be extended to accommodate this.
RESOLVED
(a)

(b)

To endorse an open completion date, within the financial year
2021/22, for Pigeon management Grant applicants who occupy a
listed building to enable them to gain consent for works.
To investigate further costs of installing a Changing Places
Facility and bring back to Committee.

RECOMMEND to Policy & Finance Committee to carry forward
underspend of £2,000 from Buzzard Trails (4509/101) to earmarked
reserve (9018/970) to fund annual maintenance to the Children’s Trail.
89/CE

COMMITTEE WORK PLAN AND OBJECTIVES
(a)

The Committee received the Committee Workplan and Objectives for
2020-2021.

RESOLVED to note the Committee Workplan and Objectives for 20202021.
(a)

The Committee received the draft workplan and Objectives for 20212022.

Members agreed that the closing down of the Leighton-Linslade Homeless
centre was a cause for concern and should be looked at by the Partnership
Committee.
It was agreed to discuss with Sarah Hughes, Central
Bedfordshire Council regarding the closure.
RESOLVED to note the draft workplan and objectives for 2021-22.
The meeting closed at 9.50 pm.
I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT AND ACCURATE
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 1 MARCH 2021.

Chair

14 JUNE 2021

Page 6

Page 41

June 2021
RECORD OF APPROVED DECISIONS
CULTURAL AND ECONOMIC SERVICES COMMITTEE

Date
requested
11 June
2021

Subject

Specific agreed decision

Agreed by Cllrs

55up – tender
specification

1.1 55up Grant Fund:
a) To endorse grant criteria, guidance notes and application form.
b) To endorse the grant delivery timetable.

7 in favour

Page 7

1.2 55up Technology Helpline
a) To endorse the specification for the Technology Helpline ready to go
out to tender.
b) To endorse that Committee delegates the decision to award the
contract to the Town Clerk along with one member of Committee
and one member from the Older Persons Sub-committee, to
facilitate timely project progression.

11 June
2021

Variable Signage

1.1 To allocate £20k of the Market Town Regeneration Fund budget 6 in favour
(925/9505) for the relocation of the electric variable sign.

18 June
2021

Christmas Lights

1.1 To confirm that Committee is satisfied to have gone to tender for the
next Christmas lighting contract.
1.2 To endorse the contract be awarded to applicant C, subject to
confirmation that Professional Indemnity Cover will be secured by
the applicant, for three years, 2021 to 2023, inclusive of the option
to extend for a further one or two years should Committee deem
appropriate.

7 in favour

Agenda Item 6

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8

Agenda Item 7
LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL
OLDER PERSONS SUB-COMMITTEE
THURSDAY 19 AUGUST 2021 AT 1000 HOURS
Present: Councillors

G Perham
J M Freeman (Vice Chair)
S Owen (Chair)
R Goodchild
K Cursons

Also in attendance:

V Cannon (Head of Cultural and Economic
Services)
(Remotely) S Jewell, remotely, (C&E Support
Officer)
M Jahn (Committee Officer)

Members of the Public:

2

15/OP APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
No apologies for absence had been received.
16/OP APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR
It was proposed and seconded that Councillor S Owen be appointed Chair of
the Sub-Committee for 2021-2022. There were no further nominations.
RESOLVED to appoint Councillor S Owen Chair of the Older Persons Sub
Committee for the municipal year 2021-2022.
17/OP APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR
It was proposed and seconded that Councillor M Freeman be appointed Vice
Chair of the Sub-Committee for 2021-2022. There were no further nominations.
RESOLVED to appoint Councillor M Freeman Vice Chair of the Older
Persons Sub Committee for the municipal year 2021-2022.
18/OP

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.
No declarations were made.

19/OP

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
Two members of the public from Bassett Road Patient Participation Group were
in attendance who would speak later in the meeting regarding the Older People’s
Yellow Booklet.

Page 9

Page 8

Older Persons Sub-Committee

20/OP

19 AUGUST 2021

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(a)
The sub-committee received the draft minutes of the Old Persons Sub
Committee held on 6 May 2021.
RESOLVED that that minutes of the meeting of the Older Persons Sub
Committee held on 6 May 2021 be approved and signed as a correct record.
(b) Item reference 13/OP Updates and Discussion number 6 Grant Funding
Scheme – application and guidance notes were now downloadable from the
website and contact had been made with all interested parties. An article
had been included in the Leighton Buzzard Observer and would be circulated
in the Bee Local Autumn edition throughout the town and About Town on 1
September 2021.
Item reference 13/OP Updates and Discussion number 2 Technology
Helpline – tenders had been invited and interested parties notified. The end
date for applications was 25 August 2021 but this may need to be extended
for a further 3 or 4 weeks should we not receive any tenders as it is summer
holiday period and group capacity may be an issue for applicants. If there
were no replies the process may need to be revised and a different approach
taken. After discussion, members agreed to extend the deadline to allow
time for applications to be received before bringing back to the subcommittee for further deliberation.
RESOLVED that should no tenders be received, to extend the tender
deadline for another 3 weeks before bringing back to the subcommittee to consider next steps.

21/OP

OLDER PEOPLE’S YELLOW BOOKLET
Guests from the Bassett Road Patient Participation Group (PPG) attended the
meeting to provide an update to members regarding the Yellow Booklet. This
booklet had historically been produced by the PPG as a hard copy to enable
older people to have access to a booklet with relevant local information. The
target age for recipients of the booklet was 65yrs and above. It was understood
that the paper version of the Yellow Booklet is particularly valued by that age
group, for whom digital take up decreases with older age-groups. This group
consisted of volunteers who gave their time freely to produce the booklet. The
Town Council funded the first print and fifty percent of the cost of the second
print.
The Town Council was working towards producing digitally based
information focusing on leisure activities for older people. The PPG had hoped
that other support information which their booklet includes would also be part of
the Council’s information. The PPG asked if the continuation and production of
the Yellow Booklet could be administered by the Town Council as part of their
support for older people in Leighton Buzzard.
Concerns were raised by a Member regarding the amount of officer time required
to maintain the booklet. All agreed the booklet provided older people with a vital
lifeline for information, especially when they did not have access to or the

Page 10

Page 9

Older Persons Sub-Committee

19 AUGUST 2021

knowledge of how to use technology.
It was noted that Bassett Road PPG volunteers would continue to work towards
the production of a new revision of the Yellow Booklet in spring 2022 and would
continue to seek external funding for its publication.
Committee agreed to receive agenda item 10. prior to considering its response
to the PPG guests.

22/OP DIRECTORY ACTIVITIES WEB PAGE AND LEISURE OPPORTUNITIES
INFORMATION
Committee received a report which identified that other directories existed to
provide business information, Leighton Linslade Arts information and a Well
Being Directory which covered the whole of Central Bedfordshire. Officers had
explored opportunities with the directory owners to add leisure activities and
owners’ responses were positive. It was suggested that similar leisure
information did already exist, and duplication would be likely. Adding to existing
information therefore could be better use of resources. The benefits of this
approach were acknowledged.
It was agreed a meeting involving the Sub-Committee Chair, Vice-Chair and
Officers should be organised to discuss options regarding how to move forward
with the Town Councils involvement/support of the yellow booklet. It was
RESOLVED
(a) To maintain links to the existing 4 local directories via our 55up
webpage with descriptions for the ‘type’ of groups/activities that can be
found on them, thereby sign-posting people to the broad array of
existing information.
(b) To agree that Officers would help the existing directories promote
themselves and encourage groups (who attract 55 year olds and over)
to advertise themselves on the existing directories.
(c) That Committee supported the principle of maintaining the Yellow
Booklet and that meetings be arranged to discuss options on how to
move forward with the Yellow Booklet, to include any other persons
Committee thought necessary, with the aim to bring ideas back to the
next meeting for Members to determine the way forward.

23/OP

UPDATE ON GRANT
The sub-committee received a verbal update on progress of the grant scheme
under updates in item 6(b) Minutes of the Previous Meeting

24/OP

TECHNOLOGY HELPLINE UPDATE
The sub-committee received a verbal update on progress of the grant scheme
under updates in item 6(b) Minutes of the Previous Meeting

Page 11

Page 10

Older Persons Sub-Committee

25/OP

19 AUGUST 2021

PROJECT DELIVERY TIMELINE
The sub-committee received and considered an updated project delivery
Timeline. Members were informed the timeline of delivery was moveable and
dates may be amended. The Tablet Loan Scheme had just begun to be
researched and the sub-committee felt the International Day for Older Persons
on 1st October 2021 should be added to the Newsletter and About Town.
RESOLVED to note the information.
The meeting closed at 1140 hours.

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 19 AUGUST 2021.
Chair

18 November 2021

Page 12

Page 11

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL
MARKETS SUB-COMMITTEE
THURSDAY 25 FEBRUARY 2021 AT 1030 HOURS

53/MK

Present: Councillors

G Perham (Chair)
D Bowater
P Snelling
S Jones (substituting for F Kharawala)
J M Freeman
T Morris
P Carberry
R Berry

Also in attendance:

V Cannon (Head of Cultural and Economic
Services)
S Sandiford (Deputy Town Clerk)
A Harrison (Market Manager)
B Holttum (Service Support Officer)
Cllr V Harvey
Mr D Gibbins (NMTF Trader Liaison Officer)

Members of the Public:

0

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Dodwell, Goodchild and
Kharawala (substituted by Cllr Jones) and from the Town Clerk.

54/MK APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR
It was proposed and seconded that Councillor G Perham be appointed Chair of
the Market Sub-Committee for 2021-2022. There were no further nominations.
RESOLVED to appoint Councillor Perham Chair of the Markets Sub
Committee for the year 2021-2022.
Councillor Perham took the Chair.
55/MK APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR
It was proposed and seconded that Councillor M Freeman be appointed Vice
Chair of the Market Sub-Committee for 2021-2022. There were no further
nominations.
RESOLVED to appoint Councillor Freeman Vice Chair of the Markets Sub

Page 13

Page 24

Market Sub-Committee

5 AUGUST 2021

Committee for the year 2021-2022.
56/MK

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
No declarations were made and no dispensations were requested.

57/MK QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
There were no questions from the public.
58/MK MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The Sub-Committee received the draft minutes of the previous meeting, held on
25 February 2021 for consideration.
One correction was made to the attendee list confirming that Mr D Gibbins be
recorded in attendance as Chair of the trader group and not as a member of the
public.
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Markets Sub-Committee meeting held
on 25 February 2021 be approved as a correct record and were signed
accordingly.
59/MK MARKET GENERAL UPDATE
The Sub-Committee received a general market update report and several
appendices for consideration. These included updates on delivery of activity in
the last quarter of 2020-21 and the first quarter of 2021-22, pitch usage, safety
guidelines, social media communications, planned visiting markets and staffing.
The Sub-Committee welcomed Bethany Holttum as the new support officer. The
Sub-Committee received the market annual work plan and noted the planned
activity.
There had been 21 casual traders and it was hoped that at least 5 would become
permanent traders, as the revised market layout following the lessening of
Covid-19 safety restrictions would allow space for market expansion. This would
also allow for the resumption of the charity market stalls and it was hoped that
the French Market would visit later in the year.
It was noted that the recent (3 August) children’s playday on the market had
been well received and that further information in respect of the Farmers’ Market
was due to the next meeting.
The Sub-Committee noted that the resolution made by Policy & Finance
Committee on 19 April 2021 to endorse the use of the provisions of Part 111 of
the Food Act 1984 alongside the Market Charter, to endorse the Market Rights
public statement and to endorse the Visiting Markets Terms and Conditions
would safeguard the Market’s position.

Page 14

Page 25

Market Sub-Committee

5 AUGUST 2021

A point was raised regarding market layout and that for stalls using solid rear
walls, it could appear that a “tunnel” was being created between stalls and shops,
which might appear unwelcoming or off-putting to pedestrians. The Market
Manager would continue to work with individual traders on this. It was noted that
there was already liaison between the market and the shops and this would
continue.
A question was asked regarding recycling, particularly of crisp packets. There was
more work to be done on this for consideration by Council, which would receive
updates on its adopted environmental ambitions. It was agreed at the previous
committee meeting that a town wide approach might be needed rather than the
market leading on this.
The Sub-Committee received a report and a verbal update on the survey done
with market visitors at the Central Bedfordshire Community Action Day on 13 July.
69 people had taken the survey and key findings were that most people visited in
the morning, most people had walked into the town and that for most people,
visiting the market was not the primary purpose of their visit to the town centre.
Anecdotal evidence suggested that visitors were coming into town for a number
of reasons but were choosing to make their visit on a market day as an added
benefit. The survey results had been sent to Central Bedfordshire Council
colleagues for information and it was suggested that the survey be repeated later
in the year.
RESOLVED to note the reports.
60/MK YOUNG TRADER SCHEME
The Sub-Committee received a report to inform members of proposals to start a
new scheme supporting Young Traders on the market.
RESOLVED to secure the National Market Treader Federation (NMTF)
insurance cover at a cost of £250 using cost centre 412/4519, to enable
young traders to commence trading at low cost and from 16 to 30 years of
age.
61/MK REVIEW OF MARKET OPENING HOURS
The Sub-Committee received and considered a report regarding market opening
times. The Town Council had previously (pre-Covid) published opening times of
9am – 4pm but this had been reduced during the pandemic period to finishing at
3pm. It was felt that 3pm was more reflective of actual operational practice and
noted that some traders did most of their sales in the first couple of hours of
trading. A proposal was made to agree to 8:30am – 3:00pm, with vans not
permitted on site after 8:30pm or before 3:00pm, and that this could be further
reviewed later in the year, recognising that shopping habits had changed
significantly during the pandemic and might continue to change.
RESOLVED to change the market opening hours to 8:30am – 3:00pm, that

Page 15

Page 26

Market Sub-Committee

5 AUGUST 2021

this change commences from 30 September 2021 and it be reviewed in 12
months’ time.

62/MK TRADER REPRESENTATION
The Sub Committee received and considered a report for a proposal for a
meeting-by-meeting approach to co-opting market traders onto the sub committee
for all or part of a meeting, plus proposed arrangements for traders to request
agenda items for a meeting.
Since the drafting of the report, Mr Gibbins had now been formally confirmed as
the National Market Trader Federation Liaison Officer. The Sub-Committee
agreed that the recommendations at 1.1 in the report were therefore no longer
applicable, but agreed to put forward the proposed arrangements in respect of
agenda items proposed by traders.
RECOMMENDED to the Cultural and Economic Services Committee to
approve the proposed guidelines for how traders may submit a request for
an agenda item for the Market Sub-Committee.
63/MK BUDGET REPORT
The Sub-Committee received budget reports for the last quarter of 2020-21 and
the first quarter of 2021-22.
It was noted that the Covid-19 pandemic had had a significant impact on the 202021 financial year, with pitch fees waived for permanent traders, reflecting the very
challenging trading conditions given the periods of lockdown and restrictions on
non-essential trading.
The figures for the first quarter of 2021-22 reflected a positive start and it was
hoped this would continue as the country continued to recover from the pandemic
and return to more normal shopping patterns.
The trader Liaison Officer thanked the Council for its assistance in waiving the
pitch rent fees during 2020/21, stating that the decision had helped traders
significantly
Committee asked officers to pass on their thanks to all of the traders for their
ongoing support of the Market over the last 18 months and for their resilience
throughout the pandemic.
RESOLVED to note the report.

The meeting closed at 1141 hours.

Page 16

Page 27

Market Sub-Committee

5 AUGUST 2021

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 5 AUGUST 2021.

Chair

11 NOVEMBER 2021

Page 17

Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL
LIVING HISTORY TASK AND FINISH GROUP
MONDAY 24 MARCH 2021 AT 0930 HOURS
Present:

Councillors

Also in attendance:

Members of the Public:

07/LH

D Bowater (Chair)
K Cursons
A Dodwell (Vice Chair)
M Freeman
G Perham
V Harvey
P Snelling – Joined 0938
M Saccoccio (Town Clerk)
V Cannon (Head of Cultural & Economic
Services)
B Bodsworth, (Town and Community
Promotions Manager)
S Sandiford (Head of Central & Democratic
Services)
1

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
No apologies for absence had been received. It was noted that there were
technical difficulties with the meeting which were outside the Council’s control
and that this might delay some attendees from joining.

08/LH

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
No declarations of interest were made and no dispensations were requested.

09/LH

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
A member of the public spoke in relation to continuing the “much needed
conversation” in respect of diversity as well as climate change. It was suggested
that local residents could be featured as part of Black History Month activities
and that raising awareness should be a year round activity, not just restricted to
October.
It was noted that discussions with the member of the public were ongoing, with
ideas and proposals being developed for consideration at a future meeting of the
Cultural and Economic Services Committee.
The member of the public was thanked for attending, especially given the
technical issues experienced with the Microsoft Teams platform.

Page 19

Page 4

Living History Task & Finish Group

10/LH

24 MARCH 2021

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The Committee received the minutes of the Living History Task and Finish Group
meeting held on 28 January 2021.
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Living History Task and Finish Group
meeting held on 28 January 2021 be approved as a correct record, to be
signed at a later date when safe to do so.

11/LH

PROPOSAL DISCUSSION PAPER
The Task and Finish Group had received a review report for consideration and
discussion. A verbal presentation was given to explain the rationale for proposals
in more detail. A change in delivery approach was proposed, from the focus on
a single day to a more enduring legacy for the town, with the creation of a new
trail each October. Trails would be both online via the Buzzard Trails app and
in print form via a leaflet and downloadable printable version. Trails might be
themed and publicity might include characters from the trail being positioned
around the town.
It was agreed by group members that the proposed change in approach would
be less dependant on the weather, more accessible to all and provide a more
lasting historical legacy for the town and local schools. Officers were thanked for
their work in developing proposals.
RESOLVED to note the report and endorse the proposed change in
approach continuing to use the existing allocated event delivery budgets:
delivery £10,700 (4516/101) and event salaries £600 (4532/101).
RECOMMENDED to the Cultural and Economic Services Committee to
endorse the change in approach from Living History Day to the creation of
an annual trail each October, with associated activities.
A proposal was made to consider how photographic displays could be made
available to residents as there was significant local interest in this. Using vacant
retail premises for pop-up displays was suggested. The Council was already in
liaison with the Leighton Buzzard and District Historical and Archaeological
Society and often sourced images from the group. A couple of other local
contacts were suggested as sources of local history photographs.
A concern was raised that the Leighton Buzzard and District Historical and
Archaeological Society needed somewhere to display and sell their books. Work
had already taken place to introduce the Society to the market book stall trader.
The Council had also offerred to help the Society liaise with local shops to this
end. Following this communication it was left with the Society to decide what
they wished to do.
It was noted that budget proposals in the report gave approximate spend
allocation and should additional funds be required to create pop up displays, a
recommendation could be made to the parent committee for any additional
expenditure from earmarked reserves for photographic display projects.

Page 20

Page 5

Living History Task & Finish Group

24 MARCH 2021

RECOMMENDED to the Cultural and Economic Services Committee to
consider use of earmarked reserves budget for the provision of
photographic displays.
It was noted that no further meetings of the Task and Finish Group were
anticipated.

The meeting closed at 1015 hours.
I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 24 MARCH 2021.

Chair

tbc

Page 21

Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22

Agenda Item 8

COUNCIL
Date:

9 September 2021

Title:

Barrel Organ Theatre Funding Request

Purpose of the Report:
To bring forward a funding request for Committee’s consideration from Barrel Organ
Theatre Company.
Contact Officer:
Vivien Cannon, Head of Cultural and Economic Services

Corporate Objective/s
Implications:
Financial
Human Resources
Operational/Service
delivery
Procedural/Legal
Risk/Health and Safety

LLTC Five Year Plan – Aim 3.
Vibrancy and Vitality of Town and Town Centre
Yes. Utilising earmarked reserves of £2000
Minimal impact on Council staff resource as the
project is independently led by Barrel Organ
Should Committee be minded, to confirm
funding on the proviso that Barrel Organ secure
full funded as listed within their proposal

Environmental Aims
1 RECOMMENDATION/S
Should members be minded, the proposal is:
1.1 To approve a contribution of £2,000 from earmarked reserve, Cultural and
Economic Services (970/9026) to Barrel Organ Theatre Company to be awarded on
the proviso that the company first secure the necessary funds to deliver their proposed
theatre project, and that this budget be held for a period of one year to allow the
company time to rase the funding.
2 INFORMATION
2.1 An Associate Director of touring theatre company Barrel Organ, which has been
operational for eight years, has approached the Council with a request to contribute
£2,000 towards the delivery of a community-based theatre project.

Page 23

2.2 Their project proposal is to put citizens and professionals together to write,
create and produce short plays in towns that could benefit from enhancing the
independent theatre scene. The theatre company has progressed its preliminary
research for this new project, with a working title, ‘Town Squared’, to the point of
seeking partners and applying for funding.
2.3 Barrel Theatre’s proposal document can be seen at Appendix A, (attached).
2.4 In addition to the funding request, the company asks that council officers assist in
reaching out to local groups and organisations they might partner with to help
support the work and to inform when needed of necessary permits, e.g., Temporary
Event Notices. This work would be minimal in terms of officer resources.
2.5 Given the element of citizen ‘story telling’, officers have made the theatre company
aware of the Children’s Trail and its origins regarding children’s stories. It has been
suggested that a link may be made with the Children’s Trail 10th anniversary in 2022,
yet activity will be led by those citizens the company recruits to work with.

3 CONCLUSION
3.1 Barrel Organ Theatre is not known to the Council. The Associate Director grew up
in Linslade and the link has been made through his knowledge and interest in the
locality. The project would assist in building audience participation in local art events.
3.2 The funding requested is relatively small in comparison to the full cost of the
project. The company will lead on securing funds and has previous success in
securing significant project funds. The purpose of confirming the Committee’s intent
to provide funding, albeit with a clear proviso, is to support the company’s larger
funding application activity.
3.3 The company will lead on all works with minimal input from council officers
requested.

End.

Page 24

BARREL ORGAN: TOWN SQUARED
Leighton-Linslade Town Council Proposal Document
Support requested: Barrel Organ are seeking a letter of support from Leighton-Linslade
Town Council with a promise of funding of £2,000 on condition of a successful Arts Council
England project grant. If the project goes ahead, we will also require support with planning
permission for outdoor events and assistance with public engagement.
THE COMPANY
The show is never finished
We are Barrel Organ. We are a multi-award-winning touring company. Using a collaborative
process, we make work that invokes meaningful change by challenging existing
preconceptions of what theatre is and can be.
Key Facts
● Incorporated as a company limited by guarantee in 2016 (Company number 10164780).
● Proportion of income for 2019/20 financial year (last fully operational year pre-Covid):
Arts Council England funding (43%), commissions (22%), theatre tax relief (22%) box
office (10%) and trusts & foundations (3%).
● 75% success rate with Arts Council England project grants in the past three years.
● Previous work includes: Nothing, Some People Talk About Violence, Anyone’s Guess
How We Got Here and CONSPIRACY.
● Currently seeking status as a charitable incorporated organisation.
● Project led by Cedars alumnus Dan Hutton, Barrel Organ’s Associate Director.
THE PROJECT
Town Squared will bring Barrel Organ’s unique brand of theatre-making to Leighton-Linslade,
collaborating with its communities to make live, exciting work which speaks to the present
moment. The project will begin with a series of workshops with citizen writers, who will, with
Barrel Organ directors, explore the process of creating a script for performance. Having
discussed and considered the possibilities of live theatre, each writer will then be
commissioned to pen their own short play, which will be presented by a professional cast and
team during a one-day outdoor festival in Summer 2022. The project will be largely funded by
Arts Council England and trusts & foundation grants.
BENEFITS
Should LLTC choose to support this endeavour at this stage, and the subsequent initial Arts
Council England bid is successful, Barrel Organ can guarantee:
● A number of free theatre workshops for both Cedars and Vandyke Upper Schools
● A series of free, open storytelling workshops between November 2021 and March 2022
● Eight-week playwriting course (meeting weekly, with respected theatre directors and
playwrights) and subsequent paid commission for five citizens
● Paid engagement with three local artistic consultants, to discuss and shape the
project and think more broadly about theatre in Leighton-Linslade
● Inter-generational cross-pollination through creativity activity
● Evaluation report on the company’s findings from this period
NB: The culminating festival will be dependent on further successful funding bids.
W. www.barrelorgantheatre.co.uk E. info@barrelorgantheatre.co.uk T. 07969436697
44 Club Garden Road, Sheffield, S11 8BU
Co-Directors Ali Pidsley Ellie Claughton, Rosie Gray Associate Director Dan Hutton

Page 25

TOWN SQUARED AIMS AND OBJECTIVES
AIMS
● Activate the creative and theatrical life of Leighton-Linslade
● Expose the people of Leighton-Linslade across generations to different ways of
approaching theatre and storytelling
● Support communities to tell the stories they want to tell
● Sow the seeds for future collaboration and an independent, professional theatre scene
within the community
● Engage groups of people who would not otherwise have seen themselves as
theatre-makers
● Using theatre to create a sense of pride and belonging in communities and
individuals
● Demonstrate to people from a variety of backgrounds and age groups that
theatre-making is a viable career, and offer ways of making work which don’t require
moving to a major city

OBJECTIVES
● Find unheard voices in the town by hosting storytelling workshops and
meet-and-greet events
● Work with local ‘Heroes’ to locate participants and build buzz for the project
● Work with local schools and groups to inspire and engage local young people and
community groups
● Work with communities to discover more daring ways of telling their stories, which
aren’t necessarily reliant on traditional forms
● Through two months of weekly workshops, share knowledge and understanding
about contemporary playwriting with a small group of citizen-writers
● Commission the citizen-writers to write short plays on a subject of their choosing
● Support citizen-writers with rigorous, professional feedback and notes
● Work with a hybrid of citizen and professional artists and creatives to produce
fully-realised productions of the short plays
● Present the plays at a pay-what-you-decide festival, alongside a locally curated
programme of local musicians, comedians and artists
● Lay the groundwork for future collaborations between citizens and support
newly-discovered creatives to make moves in the industry, if they so wish
● Lay the groundwork for similar events to continue in future years, with or without the
involvement of Barrel Organ

W. www.barrelorgantheatre.co.uk E. info@barrelorgantheatre.co.uk T. 07969436697
44 Club Garden Road, Sheffield, S11 8BU
Co-Directors Ali Pidsley Ellie Claughton, Rosie Gray Associate Director Dan Hutton

Page 26

THE WRITING PROCESS
Who are we looking for?
Barrel Organ seeks to find storytellers in Leighton-Linslade from all walks of life. These
individuals are unlikely to be people who have already written plays for stage or have a large
body of work behind them; instead, we want to discover new, unheard voices and lift them up
using creative tools. We hope to assemble a group of five or six writers with something new
to say, but who may not yet know how to say it. The group will be as diverse and
representative as possible, representing a range of ages, backgrounds, opinions and
experiences.
Although the writing course and the subsequent commissions will only be available to a
small group, some storytelling and theatre-making workshops will be free and open-access,
ensuring that a larger group of people are enabled to be creative and learn more about the
playwriting process.
How will we find the writers?
The process for selecting writers will be iterative and qualitative; there will be no formal
application process or interviews. Instead, we will use our connections with stakeholders,
including Leighton-Linslade Town Council, Cedars and Vandyke schools, community groups
and local businesses, to locate participants who might benefit from and be interested in such
an opportunity. A fact-finding week in November will also allow company members to speak
with a wide range of individuals and groups, spending time in various locations to hear what
people have to say and discover who is telling stories about the town whose voice may not be
heard.
The Workshops
From January to March 2022, the writers’ group will meet weekly to learn about the craft of
playwriting and theatre-making. The group will read and discuss extant plays, share ideas
and questions about the writing process, hear from a number of professional writers about
their craft, engage in creative exercises with the workshop leaders and, perhaps most
importantly, speak with one another about their own work.
These workshops will be professionally-led, fun and rigorous, demonstrating that with the
right tools and a passion for telling stories, anyone can be a writer. There will be multiple
moments throughout the process when other community members will be invited to join, to
ensure the benefits of the workshops are available to a wide group.
Once the initial eight-week period is over, the writers will have two months to pen a short
play of around twenty minutes in length. Throughout this period, Barrel Organ team
members will be available to answer any questions which might arise, workshop extracts of
text in community workshops, and share notes on the scripts.

W. www.barrelorgantheatre.co.uk E. info@barrelorgantheatre.co.uk T. 07969436697
44 Club Garden Road, Sheffield, S11 8BU
Co-Directors Ali Pidsley Ellie Claughton, Rosie Gray Associate Director Dan Hutton

Page 27

THE FESTIVAL
Once the short plays (see above) have been written, they will be handed over to casts and
creative teams made up of a mixture of individuals from Leighton-Linslade and professional
theatre-makers, to ensure both groups learn from one another. These plays will then be
rehearsed (accounting for work and family commitments) to a professional standard, for
presentation in summer 2022.
Where will the festival happen?
There are a number of possible locations for this event. The company believes in making
theatre as accessible to as wide a range of audiences as possible, and so to that end we
envisage the shows being presented in either community spaces or in the open air.
Ultimately, these decisions will be led by the material the writers create, but they will be
made aware of the following possibilities to guide them throughout the process:
● Parks: A temporary theatre space might be set up in a marquee or similar structure (in
the mould of Paines Plough’s Roundabout venue) in one of the town’s parks
(Mentmore Playing Fields, Pages Park, Parson’s Close). This will ensure the venue is
accessible and involves a festival spirit.
● Town Centre: Outdoor performances by the Market Cross, potentially on a Friday
night, would help the project to involve a certain degree of place-making and provide
a dramatic and historical backdrop for the plays.
● Promenade: Using one of the town’s trails (Living History Trail, Children’s Trail) as a
guide, the plays might follow an open-air route, perhaps culminating at an indoor
venue
● Community spaces: Indoor spaces will also be scouted to account for adverse weather
Wraparound programme
As well as the plays themselves, the day will be accompanied by a programme of local bands,
comedians and other live artists, selected by a team of local curators. These acts might take
the form of interval entertainment. They might lead the audience from one location to the
next. They might round off the evening with a concert, to celebrate the creativity and artistry
of Leighton-Linslade. Whichever form these performances take, they will help give the event
a sense of celebration and wonder, showcasing all the different talents in the local
community.

W. www.barrelorgantheatre.co.uk E. info@barrelorgantheatre.co.uk T. 07969436697
44 Club Garden Road, Sheffield, S11 8BU
Co-Directors Ali Pidsley Ellie Claughton, Rosie Gray Associate Director Dan Hutton

Page 28

PROPOSED PROJECT TIMELINE
Sept 2021

●
●
●
●

Initial conversations with LLTC about funding and other support
Writing marketing, engagement and audience development plans
First Arts Council England funding bid (six week decision period)
Initial conversations with trusts and foundations, including Paul
Hamlyn Foundation

Oct 2021

●

First ACE project bid result

Nov 2021

●

●

Fact-finding week, meeting with local stakeholders including, but
not limited to, LLTC, schools, cultural groups, civic leaders and
businesses
Free storytelling workshops in schools and the community

Jan 2022

●
●

Writers’ workshops begin (weekly, for 8 weeks)
Second Arts Council England funding bid

Feb 2022

●
●

Pull together team for culminating festival
Second ACE project bid result

March 2022

●

Begin to curate and organise wraparound events

April 2022

●

Writers pen plays and receive notes on drafts

May 2022

●

Liaise with publishers to publish scripts

June 2022

●
●

Designs finalised for shows
Rehearsals begin, with hybrid teams of professional and local artists

July 2022

●
●

Proposed festival day, TBD in consultation with LLTC
Wraparound events coinciding with Children’s Trail and Tree Trail

Aug 2022

●
●

Evaluation & follow-up with all stakeholders and participants
Outcomes published publicly

NB: To be finalised in discussion with LLTC and other stakeholders.

W. www.barrelorgantheatre.co.uk E. info@barrelorgantheatre.co.uk T. 07969436697
44 Club Garden Road, Sheffield, S11 8BU
Co-Directors Ali Pidsley Ellie Claughton, Rosie Gray Associate Director Dan Hutton

Page 29

AUDIENCE AND PARTICIPANT DEVELOPMENT
As with most theatre, the audience for Town Squared is broadly split into three groups:
1.
2.
3.

Existing friends, family and supporters
Local stakeholders, Neighbours or Residents
Special interest groups

1. Existing fans, friends, family and supporters
Reached through – personal interaction from participants or the Company, social media and
email
Prevented from engaging by – cost, time, prioritising other events, transport
Convinced to engage by – targeted engagement, pay-what-you-decide tickets, other
external factors (broader marketing), enthusiasm of individual promoting their own work,
emotional attachment
Success relies largely on the enthusiasm of each individual, but there are ways to incentivise
these groups to attend. This group is heavily influenced by external factors such as press
features and broader marketing in making a decision to attend the show. Utilising the ‘voice’
of the individuals involved in the project through social media and face-to-face contact is key
to encouraging this group to attend, as is emotional attachment to the individuals working
on the project.

2. Local stakeholders, Neighbours or Residents
This group falls into two subcategories: those who have attended theatre events before and
those who have not.
a) Previous theatre attendees
Reached through - Direct contact from the Company, advertising around the venue,
Company & LLTC website, social media.
Prevented from engaging by - Previous bad experience at the theatre, unknown company
and production.
Convinced to engage by - Intersection of marketing from the Company, positive press
features and word-of-mouth.
b) Theatre newbies
Reached through - General marketing that is non-theatre specific, local advertising, social
media targeting, workshops.
Prevented from engaging by - Unfamiliarity with theatre, preconceptions about the venue,
unfamiliarity with Barrel Organ and its shows.
Convinced to engage by - Pay-what-you-decide tickets, strong press coverage, ongoing
word-of-mouth throughout the project, workshops encouraging them to see the show
themselves.
W. www.barrelorgantheatre.co.uk E. info@barrelorgantheatre.co.uk T. 07969436697
44 Club Garden Road, Sheffield, S11 8BU
Co-Directors Ali Pidsley Ellie Claughton, Rosie Gray Associate Director Dan Hutton

Page 30

3. Special interest groups
Special interest groups vary between those that may engage as individuals or small groups,
to those that may engage en masse. Three of these are covered below, but it is likely that we’ll
continue to identify new groups over the course of the project.
a) Writers
Reached through - Special interest marketing, interest in existing theatre and the Arts, social
media targeting
Prevented from engaging by - Distance from or unfamiliarity with the project, potential lack
of engagement with theatre or the Arts
Convinced to engage by - Value for money, overcoming of distrust, convenience of location,
appropriateness to background
b) Schools
Reached through - Local newspapers and advertising in key places of interest, direct
marketing, free workshops
Prevented from engaging by - Logistical implications, curriculum bias, availability of time,
busy summer term
Convinced to engage by - Pay-what-you-decide tickets, free complimentary workshops,
convenience of location, appropriateness to subjects being taught
c) Audience interested in local stories
Reached through - Local special interest publications, higher education societies or courses,
cross-marketing, social media targeting
Prevented from engaging by - Cost implications, unfamiliarity with the project or company,
difficulty in accessing location
Convinced to engage by - Pay-what-you-decide tickets, convenience of location, social
media targeting and remarketing, general marketing creating a hype around the project

Throughout the project, Barrel Organ will work with marketing consultants to promote
articles around the subject on social media and in local publications. As soon as potential
audiences and participants are aware of the themes and ideas of the project, we are
confident they will engage if possible, so we will ensure they are targeted carefully and
efficiently using promoted ads and local and regional press coverage. The company will also
work closely with Leighton Buzzard Library Theatre and local arts and theatre organisations
to both reach their audiences and ensure new audiences are aware of them once the project
has ended.

W. www.barrelorgantheatre.co.uk E. info@barrelorgantheatre.co.uk T. 07969436697
44 Club Garden Road, Sheffield, S11 8BU
Co-Directors Ali Pidsley Ellie Claughton, Rosie Gray Associate Director Dan Hutton

Page 31

OUTCOME & LEGACY
Barrel Organ will ensure the ripples from this project live on in Leighton-Linslade long after
the culminating festival in a number of ways:
● Consistent engagement with Leighton Buzzard Library Theatre and local arts and
theatre organisations will ensure any new audience members or participants
discovered as a result of Town Squared will be aware of the existing cultural offering in
Leighton-Linslade
● Sustained follow-up evaluation events will continue after the final performances,
ensuring both audiences and participants can reflect on the project and its outcomes
● Local artistic consultants and ‘Heroes’ will be equipped with administrative and
artistic tools and skills to assist the continuance of independent theatre in
Leighton-Linslade
● Barrel Organ team members will remain available for advice to any participant who
may require it
● If any participant wants to pursue a professional theatre career as a result of the
project, we will endeavour to champion their work and instigate introductions with
our extensive networks
● Through our contacts with theatre publishers, the short plays will be professionally
published and all participants involved will have their names in print for posterity

W. www.barrelorgantheatre.co.uk E. info@barrelorgantheatre.co.uk T. 07969436697
44 Club Garden Road, Sheffield, S11 8BU
Co-Directors Ali Pidsley Ellie Claughton, Rosie Gray Associate Director Dan Hutton

Page 32

PROPOSED PROJECT BUDGET
Barrel Organ expects that the majority of this project will be funded by two Arts Council
England project grants. One of these grants will cover the research and development period,
and the second the production costs (the current project grant cap is £15,000; from
September 2021, up to £30,000 can be requested). The company is confident that these
applications for funding will be successful for three reasons:
a) 75% of all project grants applied for by the company in the past three years have been
successful.
b) Alongside other criteria, Arts Council England requires only 10% match funding to
secure funding, including in-kind support. Alongside pre-existing support, trusts and
foundations, local business sponsorship and other stakeholder investment, we are
confident this target will be hit.
c) This project is in keeping with the organisation’s ten-year strategy, Let’s Create, which
seeks to invest in work which empowers communities culturally and encourages
everyone to express and develop their creativity.
HEADLINE FIGURES
Income
● Total income: £65,000
● Arts Council England project grants: (£15,000 x 1) + (£30,000 x 1) = £45,000
● Trusts and foundations (e.g. Paul Hamlyn Foundation Arts Access and Participation
Fund): £15,000
● Leighton-Linslade Town Council: £2,000
● Local business sponsorship and support: £2,000
● Pay-what-you-decide ticket income: £1,000
● Throughout the period, the project will also be supported by Barrel Organ’s Company
Directors, whose fees come from a different funding pot
NB: Barrel Organ pays all freelance contractors a daily company wage of £125, or £600 per
week, in line with industry standards (ITC, Equity) and the average national income.
Expenditure
● Total cost: £64,850, broken down into:
○ Research, development and writing period: £15,450
○ Production budget: £49,400
● Budget breakdown:
○ Barrel Organ staff & freelance practitioners: £21,500
○ Participant and community fees: £16,600
○ Marketing, publicity, audience development & legacy: £5,550
○ Equipment and hire: £5,000
○ Design and props: £4,200
○ Accommodation: £3,100
○ Insurance, legal and health & safety: £2,000
○ Travel & transport: £1,000
○ Contingency (10%): £5,900

W. www.barrelorgantheatre.co.uk E. info@barrelorgantheatre.co.uk T. 07969436697
44 Club Garden Road, Sheffield, S11 8BU
Co-Directors Ali Pidsley Ellie Claughton, Rosie Gray Associate Director Dan Hutton

Page 33

BARREL ORGAN
Barrel Organ began as a group of eleven university students looking to make work outside of
the existing structures and status quo. Our first show, Nothing (text by Lulu Raczka, made by
the company), was a series of monologues that focused on experiences of isolation as a
young person. The process enabled us to develop an ensemble based practice, co-created by
multiple artists working towards a shared idea. The piece also sparked our interest in the
audience acting as our 12th collaborator, and we continue to make work with them at the
centre of the process. Nothing was performed in car parks, houses and in theatre spaces and
adapted in multiple mediums including film and via phone calls.
Our second show, Some People Talk About Violence (text by Lulu Raczka, made by the
company), explored every day violence and mental health in young women and was
shortlisted for the Amnesty International Freedom of Expression of Award in 2015. Our
third show, Anyone’s Guess How We Got Here (text by Jack Perkins, made by the company),
focused on the human cost of debt and premiered at Edinburgh Festival Fringe in 2017. All
three shows went on to tour nationally. In 2019, Barrel Organ won the Untapped Underbelly
& New Diorama Theatre for CONSPIRACY (text by Jack Perkins, made by the company), a
show about conspiracy theories and the concept of truth.
Sparked by the desire to provide artists with a similar platform to the one we received as a
young company, we began running LIVE with Camden People’s Theatre in 2015. LIVE is a
scratch night for emerging artists to test new material and became a national project in 2016.
Keen to continue our work platforming emerging artists, we curated the Emerge Festival at
Warwick Arts Centre in 2016. As part of the festival we co-created a production with current
Warwick students, The Community Show who went on to form theatre company,
Emergency Chorus. Since then we have co-created work with Cambridge Junction Young
Company and Sheffield People’s Theatre.
All our previous work has established a commitment to theatrical experimentation whilst also
ensuring our work is made collaboratively with a diverse range of participants and audiences.
We have created a blueprint of audience led work that challenges existing preconceptions of
what theatre is and can be and places co-creation at the core of everything we do. We are
currently working with English Touring Theatre to workshop an adaptation of Tess of the
D’Urbervilles with fifteen young people from across the UK. We are also co-creating a new
verbatim piece, Common Ground, about loneliness between generations with York based
collective, Thunk-It.

W. www.barrelorgantheatre.co.uk E. info@barrelorgantheatre.co.uk T. 07969436697
44 Club Garden Road, Sheffield, S11 8BU
Co-Directors Ali Pidsley Ellie Claughton, Rosie Gray Associate Director Dan Hutton

Page 34

TESTIMONIALS
Alan Lane - Artistic Director, Slung Low
I have known Barrel Organ for years since they began at the National Student Drama
Festival. I have been very impressed with the work Barrel Organ have been doing –
platforming young companies and artists through co-creating work with them. I think they
have what it takes to be a company who have longevity and a sustainable model which will
not only breed excellent work, but be genuinely socially engaged and support individuals
and communities. Their thinking feels genuinely new, relevant and exciting and I fully
support them going forwards.
Testimonials from 2021 ‘Tess Young Company’ participants
The environment created by the Barrel Organ members was the perfect balance between
chilled out and ambitious. Tess Company was the best way to stretch some acting muscles
and to try out some new ones. I felt valued, part of a team and that my opinion was valid
and heard, which is all an aspiring young performer can ask for.
Barrel Organ were the perfect people to run the project, their understanding and passion for
wanting to include young people in the theatre industry really showed throughout the 8
weeks and after. They really wanted us to just bring our true selves to the workshops and to
share our honest opinions. They have continued to help us TYC members by offering us
incredibly informative and enjoyable masterclasses with professional theatre makers and
actors.
During a time in which my own and young people's mental health is extremely fragile,
having a goal and purpose and a safe place to meet up to chat about creating theatre is
essential.

Reference:
Name: Brian Logan
Title: Artistic Director
Venue: Camden People’s Theatre
Address: 58-60 Hampstead Road, London, NW1 2PY
Email address: brian@cptheatre.co.uk

W. www.barrelorgantheatre.co.uk E. info@barrelorgantheatre.co.uk T. 07969436697
44 Club Garden Road, Sheffield, S11 8BU
Co-Directors Ali Pidsley Ellie Claughton, Rosie Gray Associate Director Dan Hutton

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36

Agenda Item 10

Events
Date: 13th September 2021
Title: Events Update Report
Purpose of the Report:
To provide an update on the events planning for 2021 and plans for 2022.
Contact Officer:
Ben Bodsworth, Town & Community Promotions Manager

Corporate Objective/s

LLTC Five Year Plan – Aim: 3. Vibrancy and Vitality of

Town and Town Centre
Implications:
Financial
Human Resources
Operational/Service
delivery
Procedural/Legal
Risk/Health and Safety
Environmental Aims

Yes - Within existing budgets. Proposal to increase
event budget codes annually in line with RPI.
Yes - Delivery of the events programme in calendar
years 2021 and 2022.
Yes – environmental aims incorporated within terms
and conditions for attending traders

1 RECOMMENDATION
Should members be minded, the proposals are:
1.1 To continue with the planning and delivery of the Christmas Festival.
1.2 To endorse the dates for the 2022 series of events and allow planning to
commence.
1.3 To endorse the increasing of event budgets hereafter as an annual growth
item in line with the Retail Price Index.
1.4 To endorse the allocation of previously dedicated un-spent earmarked
reserves towards enhancing event delivery (Ref. 140/CE, Ref. 23/CE and
Ref. 87/CE), to be spent in the financial years 2022/2023 & 2023/2024.

Page 37

2 INFORMATION
2.1 Committee was unable to convene for its June meeting and service updates
were shared via email to ensure Members were kept up to date with work. The
June update is attached at Appendix A, to serve as a reminder.
2.2 At the time of writing, there are currently no restrictions on outdoor, un-ticketed
events taking place within England.
2.3 Officers continue to undertake the forthcoming events programme within the
government guidelines published at the time of the event delivery and will
respond to all changes in legislation and guidance throughout the period of
event planning, delivery and post-event reconciliation.

3 MUSIC IN THE PARK (JUNE – SEPTEMBER)
3.1 The Music in the Park series of concerts concluded on Sunday 5th September
following weekly concerts held in Parson’s Close Recreation Ground since
June.
3.2 To ensure the concerts could take place safely at the start of the summer, a
reservations system was undertaken for concerts taking place prior to the 21 st
June and extended until the 19th July.
3.3 Reservation uptake was good with 1163 reservations made, out of a possible
1505 reservations. Attendance at the reserved concerts varied with attendance
figures varying from 50 to 120 over the course of the reservation period.
3.4 Since the reservation period ended, attendees have varied from 50 – 100 each
week. The reduced number of attendees from previous years may be due to
changeable weather conditions over the concert period and many still hesitant
about attending events.
3.4 Due to inclement weather conditions, one concert was cancelled (4 th July,
Milton Keynes Brass) however all other concerts took place as planned.
3.5 At the time of writing, Last Night of the Proms and Picnic in the Park is due to
take place on Saturday 11th September. Event Health and Safety and risk
assessment documents have been circulated internally and to SAG (Safety
Advisory Group).
4 FILMS IN THE PADDOCKS (31ST JULY / 1st AUGUST)
4.1 Films in the Paddocks took place over the weekend of 31st July & 1st August in
Tiddenfoot Waterside Park. Screenings took place at 11am, 3pm & 7pm on
Saturday and 11am & 3pm on Sunday.

Page 38

4.2 To ensure compliance with the Temporary Events Notice which the event held,
attendance was by reservation only. A total of 2187 reservations were made
from a possible 2560 spaces available.
4.3 Inclement weather during the operational days meant a reduced number of
reservation holders attended. The operational dates also coincided with the
height of the Covid ‘ping-demic’ and anecdotal evidence was passed on by
attendees highlighting several people being unable to attend due to being
contacted by NHS Test & Trace or the NHS App and requesting them to
isolate.
4.4 Attendance figures were:
Film Name
Trolls World Tour
Mary Poppins Returns
Bohemian Rhapsody
Charlie & The Chocolate Factory
Beauty & The Beast

Attendance
154
41
103
65
122

Mary Poppins Returns was particularly impacted by the inclement weather
due to a rain shower which took place immediately prior to and during the
opening of the film.
4.5

Visitors who did attend provided very positive feedback via our social media
channels;
We went to the screening of Bohemian Rhapsody last night and I just wanted
to send my thanks for a really enjoyable evening. All the staff on site were
very helpful but I would like to single out the two chaps at the entrance to
Leighton Middle School – their cheery demeanour as we arrived and departed
really added to the whole event :-)
Just wanted to commend the organisers for a brilliant event - we went to see
Beauty and the Beast and loved it - very well organised and well thought-out.
Hugely grateful that our local council are putting events like this on free of
charge for local families. Thank you
Thanks for putting on such a great event! Really impressed with the
organisation and your staff were excellent. The car park guys were super
friendly and were waving everyone off as they left which was a lovely touch.
Looking forward to more of these events in the future!

Page 39

5 BIG LUNCH (21st & 22nd AUGUST)
5.1 Big Lunch took place in Parson’s Close Recreation Ground on Saturday 21 st &
Sunday 22nd August with performances from Mariachi Tequila and Revolve
throughout the weekend.
5.2 Initially planned to take place under restrictions with a reservation being
required, following the relaxing of restrictions on 19th July a reservation wasn’t
necessary for attendance at the Big Lunch.
5.3 Eleven out of twelve stall holders attended offering cuisine options from around
the world including Lebanese, Ghanaian and Sri Lankan alongside sweeter
offerings from France and Spain.
5.4 Attendance was steady throughout the weekend with a lunchtime peak on
Sunday where 80% of the available picnic benches were in use during the
performance by Revolve.
5.5 Feedback from attendees was positive with one comment of ‘well this looks
alright’ in a positive tone received upon walking into the park and others of ‘its
nice to be able to get out again’ and ‘We enjoyed the event and being in the
park was more spacious…The live music was enjoyable’ also received.
5.6 Some feedback was received from residents regarding the noise generated by
the event taking place both by those living close to the park and further afield.
Officers provided a response to all those who contacted the Town Council and
assured residents that although some noise generated by events may be
audible off site, we seek to minimise the disturbance where possible. We will
continue to inform residents likely to be most impacted prior to the events
taking place.
6 LIVING HISTORY TRAIL / BUZZARD TRAILS APP (OCTOBER)
6.1 Officers continue to work on the delivery of a new Living History Trail to be
made available on the Buzzard Trails app. Due to the reliance on third party
providers for the information, a new trail is currently under creation but will not
be ready to launch in October.
6.2 Officers are currently working alongside The Greensand Trust to deliver a
virtual version of the Sands of Time trail on the Buzzard Trails app for those
points which are in within the parish.
6.3 Recordings of those who feature on the trail, along with a text description and
photographs relevant to the location and audio files will be available on the app
from mid-October.
6.4 To further highlight the history of shops within the Town Centre, the Living
History Business Trail (which was created October 2020) to celebrate

Page 40

businesses and their owners in the town centre is also being digitised to feature
on the app.
6.5 A period of increased publicity along with an information stall on the Tuesday
market will take place during mid-October. We will invite historical societies to
join our stall once the date is confirmed.
7 BUSINESS NETWORK EVENT (6TH OCTOBER)
7.1 Officers are reviewing the suitability of the Business Networking Event due to
take place on Wednesday 6th October at Leighton Buzzard Golf Club.
7.2 Feedback from steering group members has been received to highlight a
number of potential challenges should the event go ahead as planned.
7.3 Whilst there are no legal restrictions of events of this nature taking place, many
businesses are still cautious about face-to-face meetings with some preventing
their employees from attending.
7.4 The current format of the event doesn’t allow social distancing to take place
and the wearing of face coverings would reduce the amount of interaction
which is possible at a business networking event.
7.5 Officers have carried out a SWOT analysis for the event and are currently
seeking viable alternatives to provide support and advice for the business
community within the town.

8 CHRISTMAS FESTIVAL WEEKEND (26TH – 28TH NOVEMBER)
8.1 Whilst minimal planning has taken place for the Christmas Festival Weekend,
officers are beginning to plan for the event to take place in its original format.
8.2 The Christmas Festival Weekend will take place on Friday 26th – Sunday 28th
November with a festive market, light switch on and firework display taking
place on Friday evening.
Additional entertainment will be present as part of the charter market on
Saturday, along with assisting in the facilitation of the Leighton Buzzard Fun
Runners Santa Dash during the morning.
Sunday will see the return of a festive market to the high street alongside
themed street performance and food outlets.
8.3 Several key planning milestones are required to be reached in the coming
weeks and orders for equipment and staffing are required to be placed.

Page 41

Due to the uncertainty around any future restrictions, members should be
aware that if the event is cancelled due to restrictions which prevent our event
taking place (but not necessarily events in general e.g., Test & Trace or
Vaccine Passport), there may be some cancellation charges to pay.
Leighton-Linslade Town Council holds business to business relationships with
its suppliers and therefore, in some instances, is not covered by the same
guidance which a consumer would have. Officers will seek to minimise
cancellation charges where possible.

9 FUTURE EVENT DATES
9.1 To ensure availability of equipment and services for our events programme in
2022, officers are beginning to undertake procurement work for key pieces of
infrastructure required for each event. This is particularly relevant for the
weekend of the Queens Jubilee.
9.2 For the Jubilee weekend, officers have had initial discussions with the Rotary
Club Leighton Linslade, and it is likely that the club will run their event on Friday
3rd June. This will utilise the funding originally awarded to the club for their 2020
event which has been carried forward, (Ref. 26/CE & ). Neither their 2020 nor
2021 events have taken place.
Grounds and Environmental (G&E) services will lead on an activity for Thursday
2nd June in line with direction offered by the Queen’s Pageantmaster and G&E
Committee will receive a report on proposed activity at its meeting on 09/09/21.
Arrangements for adding entertainment to the Saturday market are being
considered and the Sunday, 5th June naturally falls on the date of the annual Big
Lunch event. Given its national importance, a communication strategy to ensure
maximum public exposure will be created and thereafter delivered.
9.3 It is proposed to host the Covid-19 Thanksgiving and Reflection event in early
March on Sunday 6th. Mindful of Mothering Sunday on 27th March, it is proposed
that a respectful distance be made between the two events to demonstrate
appropriate sensitivity.
Sunday 6th March
Thanksgiving and Reflection Event
Wednesday 27th April
Business Network Event
Sunday 5th June (Queen’s Jubilee weekend)
Big Lunch
Sunday 5th June – Sunday 4th September
Music in the Park

Page 42

Saturday 30th July
Canal Festival
Saturday 10th September
Last Night of the Proms
Friday 25th – Sunday 27th November
Christmas Lights Switch On

10 EVENTS BUDGETS (GROWTH)
10.1 At the committee meeting held on 15th October 2018, committee endorsed
additional expenditure throughout the events programme due to increased
costs for all events without the increase in budgets across a number of years
(Ref: 140/CE).
10.2 Throughout the last 18 months, whilst costs initially fell dramatically for event
infrastructure, costs have now returned to pre-pandemic levels and in some
cases, risen significantly, e.g., fuel & transport.
10.3 To ensure budgets, (and therefore the events programme), remain viable,
growth in line with the September RPI (Retail Price Index) should be
considered.
10.4 Budget lines affected are:
Budget Code
101/4552
101/4513
101/4515
101/4511

Description
Big Lunch
Band Concerts
Canal Festival
Christmas Street Event

Current Annual Budget
£11,424
£7,100
£19,925
£14,625

101/4553
101/4531
101/4530
101/4408

Salaries (Big Lunch)
Salaries (Band Concert)
Salaries (Canal Festival)
Salaries (Christmas)

£3,000
£1,000
£5,000
£5,000

11 EVENTS BUDGETS (EARMARKED RESERVES)
11.1

Committee endorsed the use of community projects earmarked reserve
(970/9057), to expand the events programme over a three-year period (Ref.
23/CE), to cover the financial years 2019/20, 2020/21 & 2021/22.

Page 43

11.2

Due do the covid-19 pandemic, the expenditure of the 2020/21 allocation
remains as does the majority of the 2021/22 allocation. A total of £16,999 of
the original £22,500 remains unspent.

11.3

Committee (01/03/21, Ref: 87/CE), and Council (Ref: 108/Council), agreed
that existing spend commitments from earmarked reserves are continued into
financial year 2021/22. Given the expenditure of un-spent resource from the
financial years 2020/21 & 2021/22 in 2022/23 be carried forward.

11.4

Due to the scale of un-spent earmarked reserves in 2020/21 & 2021/22,
funds to enhance the events programme in 2022/23 & 2023/24 financial years
exists.

11.5

To continue with the event enhancements made to the Canal Festival (later
running of the event and associated costs) & Music in the Park programme
(Last Night of the Proms including Fireworks) an additional investment of
£5,515 is required annually.

11.6

Following positive feedback from the Films in the Paddocks events
consideration should be given to a further expansion of the Last Night of the
Proms & Picnic in the Park event to include a free, outdoor movie screening
during the day whilst the infrastructure required to deliver the film screenings
is available.
An additional investment of £2,000 per annum would be required to cover the
costs of film licensing and associated costs with a longer event running time.
This would be initially for a trial year (2022/23) and if successful, would
continue in 2023/24.

11.7

For the 2022/23 & 2023/24 financial years this additional investment (£7,500
per annum, £15,000 total) can be made from the un-spent earmarked
reserves allocated to the events programme as detailed in 11.2. An unspent
allocation of £1,999 would remain.

11.8

Following the additional investment in financial years 2022/23 & 2023/24
further investment will be required to continue to deliver the enhanced events
programme in future years.

12 CONCLUSION
12.1 The events programme whilst looking different to normal this year continues to
deliver an accessible range of free events for members of the public to attend
and activities to undertake. The range of restrictions in place at the start of the
year lead to some uncertainty in the planning process but a programme of
music and film activities across the summer proved popular for those who
attended.

Page 44

12.2 Officers intend to return to the traditional programme of activity in 2022 but
members need to be mindful of the possibility of restrictions returning or
guidelines for events changing over the coming months.
12.3 Officers continue to work to the maximum amount permissible whilst ensuring
the safety of both members of staff and members of the public alike.
End

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46

EVENTS

(14th June 2021)

2 INFORMATION
2.1 At the time of writing, England is within the third stage of the government’s
unlocking road map, with further announcements expected on 14 th June in
relation to the fourth stage of the roadmap to take effect from 21 st June. The
restrictions which will be in place from the 21st June onwards are currently
unknown.
2.2 Officers will undertake the forthcoming events programme within the
government guidelines published at the time of the event taking place and will
respond to all changes in legislation and guidance throughout the period of
event delivery. As the regulations stand, all of the summer (June – September)
Leighton-Linslade Events for 2021 would be able to take place under current
restrictions, subject to approval by Council and Central Bedfordshire Council
Safety Advisory Group.
3 MUSIC IN THE PARK (JUNE – SEPTEMBER)
3.1 The Music in the Park series of concerts runs from June – September weekly
within Parson’s Close Recreation Ground and features local amateur brass,
concert, orchestral and Jazz bands. Performances begin at 3pm and usually
last around 90minutes including a short interval where refreshments can be
purchased from the Café in the Park.
3.2 To ensure the concerts can take place safely, a reservations system has been
put in place for 2021 for concerts taking place prior to 21st June. A review into
the reservation system will take place following the government roadmap
announcement for concerts post 21st June.
3.3 At the time of writing, the reservations for the first Music in the Park concert
have been made available for members of the public to book via a third-party
ticketing website (a free service) or through a telephone reservation line.
Reservations for each concert will be made available two weeks prior to the
concert taking place.
3.4 For the first concert performed by Chiltern Hills Brass, uptake has been good
with 62.8% of spaces reserved by members of the public or allocated as a
social distancing space.

Page 47

4 FILMS IN THE PADDOCKS (31ST JULY / 1st AUGUST)
4.1 Films in the Paddocks replaces the traditional Linslade Canal Festival held at
Tiddenfoot Waterside Park on the last weekend in July. The event will be held
across the weekend with screenings at 11am, 3pm & 7pm on Saturday and
11am & 3pm on Sunday.
4.2 To ensure the screenings can take place safely and within license conditions, a
maximum of 485 reservations are available for each screening. Reservations
can be made via a third-party ticketing website or through a telephone
reservation line from Monday 5th July onwards.
4.3 The films being shown are:






Trolls World Tour (2020, PG)
Mary Poppins Returns (2018, U)
Bohemian Rhapsody (2018, 12A)
Charlie & The Chocolate Factory (2005, PG)
Beauty & the Beast (2017, U)

4.4 Visitors will be encouraged to bring a picnic or make use of the on-site catering
options provided by external catering companies.
5 BIG LUNCH (21st & 22nd AUGUST)
5.1 Planning for the Big Lunch continues with performance acts booked for both
days of the event. Mariachi Tequila and Revolve Party Band will entertain
audiences throughout the weekend in Parson’s Close Recreation Ground.
5.2 Whilst with the current restrictions in place, the event remains reservation only.
It is hoped that should the restrictions in place at the time allow, the
requirement to restrict numbers will be removed and the event may utilise a
greater space within the park throughout the weekend. Should this be the case,
a revised event safety plan, risk assessment and site plan will be required.
5.3 A diverse range of catering opportunities have been booked with foods from
around the world represented whilst also catering for those with dietary
requirements.
5.4 Reservations are available for tables of up to 6 people per table and are free to
make. Reservations will become available from Monday 2 nd August and will
allow people to reserve a table at either an 11am – 2pm or 3pm – 6pm session
on Saturday or an 11am – 2pm session on Sunday. In its current format, the
event will finish at 2pm on Sunday to allow the Music in the Park concert to take
place at 3pm.
6 CHRISTMAS FESTIVAL WEEKEND (26TH – 28TH NOVEMBER)

Page 48

6.1 Minimal planning for the Christmas Festival Weekend has taken place yet due
to the uncertainty around the restrictions which may be in place at the time of
delivery. It is hoped that should there be no restrictions on mass gatherings, a
full Christmas Festival Weekend will be able to be delivered in its usual format.
The Christmas Lights Switch-On would take place on Friday evening, a festive
market would run on Saturday, and a Craft & Gift market throughout Sunday
with a Funfair in the High Street for the duration.
6.2 Should restrictions remain in place during the winter months, it is proposed to
repeat the activities of 2020 which would include additional market days, street
theatre and the potential for online virtual entertainment to be considered once
again.
6.3 Depending on how Council manages its formal committee meetings, officers
may provide a further written update for Members on the Christmas Festival
Weekend prior to the next formal meeting of the Cultural & Economic Services
Committee where a delegated decision by email may be required to ensure
statutory planning deadlines are able to be met.
7 TOWN CENTRE WIRELESS MUSIC
7.1

Delayed from 2020, officers continue to work with the Wifi provider within the
Town Centre and a local PA System provider to continue feasibility and
technical requirements to play background music in the High Street over a
prolonged period of time.

7.2

An earmarked reserve budget has been allocated for this work and will be used
at an appropriate time.

7.3

Officers currently seek to trial the music throughout the pre-Christmas
shopping season in late November and throughout December.

8 QUEEN’S JUBILEE 2022
8.1

Committee will be aware that celebrations will take place in 2022 for the
Queen’s 70th year as Monarch. The traditional May bank holiday will be
moved to the Thursday 2nd June and a one-off additional bank holiday will
take place on Friday 3rd June creating a long bank holiday weekend.

8.2

Two annual Town Council programmed events usually take place at this time
of year. The Town Council delivers the Big Lunch Food Festival and starts the
Band Concert programme. It is currently the intention that the Big Lunch and
Band Concert will take place as usual on the first Sunday in June, that being
the 5th June.

8.3

Rotary Club Leighton Linslade hold their May Day celebration at this time of
year too and have indicated they plan to hold their event on Friday 3rd June.

Page 49

9 CONCLUSION
9.1 Whilst the events programme looks different to normal this year, an accessible
range of events for members of the public is scheduled for the summer months
which can take place within the current restrictions.
9.2 Members will appreciate that the planning and delivery of events within the
covid-secure framework is both complex and ever changing. Officers continue
to work to the maximum amount permissible whilst ensuring the safety of both
members of staff and members of the public alike.

Page 50

Agenda Item 11

Date: 23rd August 2021
Title: TACTIC
Purpose of the Report:
To note the report
Contact Officer:
Linda Farmer – TACTIC Centre Manager

Corporate Objective/s

Implications:
Financial
Human Resources
Operational/Service
delivery
Procedural/Legal
Risk/Health and Safety
Environmental Aims

LLTC Five Year Plan – No. 26: To consider ways to
support the increase in leisure and personal
development opportunities for youth, incorporating
ongoing feedback from young people and considering
suitability of delivery locations for youth work.
Yes

Within existing budget

Yes

Work delivery

1 RECOMMENDATION/S
Should members be minded, the proposal is:
1.1

To note the report

2 GENERAL YOUTH WORK UPDATES, APRIL – JULY 2021
2.1 Committee was unable to convene for its June meeting. The service updates
originally drafted for that meeting are attached at Appendix A, to serve as
background to progression of activites.
2.2 Tang Group (Tactic Additional Needs Group)
This group has continued throughout most of the pandemic and now has 2 new

Page 51

members. The young people attended trips over the summer break to Tring
Museum and Rushmere Park. The group also took part in this year’s carnival
working with the Centre for Carnival Arts UK based in Luton, which links to Council’s
Black History Month activity. The group portrayed characters such and Tom and
Jerry and Mary Poppins in keeping with the Carnival theme and won first prize in the
children’s section. This secured a £50 prize which has been invested in the group’s
activities.
2.3 Young Persons Drop In
Covid continued to impact on young people attending the drop in. Due to restrictions
on numbers of people allowed within the centre, attendance has been sporadic and
much lower than normal. Staff will again reach out to the young people in September
at school assemblies to rebuild the attendance. Sessions are currently running
Tuesdays, Wednesdays, and Thursdays from 3:30 – 6:00pm.
2.4 We Are Youth (Youth Forum)
This activity has now been revamped and renamed (as above), following the natural
departure of previous members who have moved onto college and university. The
purpose of the group is to provide young people with the opportunity to express their
views, make changes in their community and take responsibility for decisions that
affect their lives. 5 new young people are now actively working within the group and
are planning an art project to introduce themselves and the group to their peers.
2.5 Mentoring
A vast increase in referrals have been received, with current numbers for open cases
at 24, (at the time of writing), and a waiting list of 12. Referrals come from schools,
parents, young people, Doctor’s surgeries, and CAMS. Issues affecting the young
people are anxiety, panic attacks, low self-esteem, family problems and
relationships. Since Covid-19 began we have seen a 50% increase in numbers of
referrals being received.
2.6 Schools Offer
As part of the schools offer TACTIC has been commissioned by Leighton Middle
School to provide 3-hours per week to the students for mentoring purposes. This will
commence in September and will last for 39 weeks during term time.
2.7 Garden Project
As part of the summer programme TACTIC started a major overhaul and revamp of
the garden area. This is being supported by funding and gift donations received
from young people, parents, Morrisons and a local business called ‘On the Level’.
Young people have been active in helping design and deliver this work. A new
storage unit has been purchased and the old shed taken down, fences painted,
flowers planted, BBQ area, upcycling of pallets to make garden furniture, mosaic art
to paving slabs and repainted picnic bench and garden seating. A celebratory BBQ
opening day took place on 1st September.
2.8 Youth Survey
TACTIC is working with the Partnership Committee’s Community Forum contact
creating a survey targeting young people aged 12- 16yrs. The focus is on youth

Page 52

provision, e.g., parks, facilities for young people, etc., rather than issues that neither
the Town nor unitary authority can respond to. Informal discussions with other
community groups, and the police are taking place. It is planned for the survey to be
delivered face to face with community groups and in schools as well as online.
Partnership Committee’s budget is funding this work.
2.9 Building Hire
Requests for building hire are now coming back in, and general promotion of the
facilities has restarted. This will generate income as per our income targets and
building usage as well as familiarity with the facility over the coming months.
2.10 AQA accreditation
TACTIC is in the process of re-registering for the AQA young people’s awarding
body. Two staff members will undertake coordinator’s training in October. The
Award Scheme is a unique recording of achievement, rather than a qualification. It
offers learners the opportunity to have their achievements formally recognised with a
certificate each time a short unit of learning is successfully completed. Certificates
will go towards the student’s school record of achievements.
2.11 Summer programme
A 5-week programme was produced giving the young people opportunities to join in
activities both centre-based and within the parks. A weekly tables tennis tournament
in the park was delivered. This utilised the table tennis tables that previous youth
survey work identified a desire for. The programme was slightly reduced this year as
it was planned with Covid-19 sensitivities in mind.
3 ONE-TO-ONE WORK
3.1 Incorporated into TACTIC’s core service offer is one-to-one support/mentoring.
The demand in requests for this work is witness to TACTIC’s success rate in
delivering positive outcomes. In this quarter a total of 38 young people have
benefited from a combined total of over 178.5 support hours. The two tables below
provide a record of the related subject matters and recipient data.
a. Referral pathway and presenting issues:
Mental General
Family Relationships Health Health
Jobs
9
8
26
3
1

School College Other
19
2
8

b. age & gender breakdown
Age
M
12

F
26

11
1

12
10

13
5

Page 53

14
6

15
7

16
6

17
3

4 STAFFING
4.1 TACTIC currently has one full time staff member on maternity leave until June
2022. Two part time staff members decided to leave the service for reasons of
career development, etc. At the time of writing, one vacancy was being advertised
with a closing date of end of August.

5 ANNUAL WORKPLAN
5.1 The annual workplan is attached at Appendix B. In reviewing the annual work
plan, officers have identified the need to make some adjustments to delivery activity
in order to ensure current needs of young people can be met.
5.2 Open drop-in sessions are offered as a diversionary activity to help reduce antisocial behaviour and are tailored to providing a safe space of activities for young
people after school. There is an increase amongst young people in social anxiety as
we continue to come out of Covid-19 circumstances. This has led to an increase in
demand for 1:1 support and mentoring has increased dramatically. To meet current
service demands, a reduction to 3 drop-in sessions a week has been instigated thus
allowing staff adequate time to deliver one-to-one support both within schools and
within TACTIC.
5.3 Satellite activities such as TANG continue. Once staff have been recruited it is
intended to again continue with the Box Release project towards reducing anti-social
behaviour.
5.4 Schools Offer continues to be in demand and it is anticipated that workshops will
commence with the return to school in September.
5.5 As detailed in the plan, it I proposed to reinstate the CHUMS Wellbeing Service
at TACTIC. Meetings have been held and staff are currently waiting on costings
from CHUMS to see if this can be actioned. Earmarked reserves were allocated for
this service prior to COVID, (meeting references - Ref. 71/CE and Ref 108/Council).
It is proposed to offer this service for 3 hours per week to meet demand.
6. CONCLUSION
6.1 The pandemic has had an impact on service delivery and changed the current
demand for support with the young people of Leighton Buzzard and Linslade. Due to
lockdowns and isolation, there has been a general drop in attendance of drop-in
sessions. In contrary to this there has been a sharp dramatic rise in demand for
one-to-one support.
6.2 With some normality returning to people’s lives and our working days, the next
quarter will focus on promoting the centre to increase take-up of the drop-in service

Page 54

and building young people’s confidence to enter the TACTIC building again. There
will also be an emphasis on delivering school workshops and key project awareness
raising work as is part of the youth work remit.

End

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56

CULTURAL AND ECONOMIC SERVICES COMMITTEE (14TH JUNE 2021)

2 WORK DELIVERY UPDATES FOR FEBRUARY, MARCH AND APRIL 2021
2.1

General Youth Work.

2.1.2 The list below shows the themes of work undertaken in quarter two.
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)

2.2

Tang Group (TACTIC Additional Needs Group)
Young Person’s Drop In
Youth Forum
Mentoring
Schools Offer
Garden Project
Carnival

Key Project Work:

2.2.1 Drop-In sessions
Sessions were reinstated in February due to relaxing of COVID-19
restrictions. These remain active with 3 sessions per week and restricted
numbers. Attendance has been low and sporadic with some of the regular
members not attending due to exam pressures. A small group of vulnerable
young people have remained and continue to do so.
It is planned to relaunch the sessions in September pending government
amendments to current restrictions. This will consist of 2x sessions for the 12–
14 age group, and one for young people aged 15–19. The aim of dividing the
ages is to see if it will encourage some of the younger aged young people to
attend. Facilitating this is particularly relevant during their transition from
middle to upper school. Sessions will be promoted through schools and
social media.
2.2.2 Youth Forum
TACTIC is currently recruiting for new members of the group and will
relaunch under the name of ‘We Are Youth’. To date we have three young
people ready to join. More promotion activity is taking place within the
schools. The aim is to have this group up and running by September.
2.2.3 Garden Project
This project was planned for last year, but due to COVID was put on hold.
Now with easing of restrictions, TACTIC is working with 6 young people on
redesigning the garden area. This includes replanting of flowers, cutting back

Page 57

of existing shrubs, demolishing old shed and replacing with storage unit,
stencilling of paving, painting of fencing and upcycling of pallets to create
seating area. It is planned for this to continue over the summer holidays with
a launch day in August.
2.2.4 Carnival Project
Staff are working alongside the Luton based UK Centre for Carnival Arts
(UKCCA) to deliver costume workshops in readiness for TACTIC young
people’s attendance at the Leighton-Linslade Carnival procession on 10th July
2021. TANG (TACTC Additional Needs Group), members are being tasked
with making headdresses and costumes for them to wear when joining the
procession through the town.
This work links directly into Committee’s wish to celebrate and raise
awareness of diversity as per Council’s publication of its revised Equality
statement. The approach uses a shared theme of work, Carnival, to explore
how different cultures celebrate and in doing so, creates a shared experience.
2.2.5 Summer Programme
Staff have begun planning activity to run a summer programme this year
whilst keeping some restrictions on sessions due to the uncertainty of whether
COVID restrictions will ease. It is also planned to run the usual drop-in service
for two sessions per week with a regular themed activity every Wednesday.
Themes are yet to be determined.
2.2.6 Youth Survey:
TACTIC is supporting the Partnership Committee’s Community Forum’s work
in delivering a Youth Survey. The agreed theme for the survey is focused on
the ‘youth provision’ in the area. This translates to include service provision as
well as community placed infrastructure in parks, etc. Partnership Committee
is interested in gathering information that the Town and Central Bedfordshire
Councils can directly respond to. At the time of writing, questions are being
finalised. The servery will take pace in September 2021.

3 SATELLITE PROJECTS
3.1

TANG (Teenagers with Additional Needs Group)
TANG has continued during the latest lockdown period as a support service
for vulnerable young people and continues as normal. Sessions have moved
back to Linslade Memorial Pavilion with full attendance from its members. The
group is currently working on making costumes and Headdresses for the
Carnival.

4 SCHOOLS OFFER
4.1

Whilst staff have been actively working within schools delivering 1:1 support,
workshops have been paused due to COVID restrictions. Staff have taken this

Page 58

opportunity to update all the current delivery programmes and add new ones
where required. One school has requested a workshop on suicide due to
some recent issues, and others are still requesting support around anxiety,
eating disorders and self-harm due to current themes. It is planned to
reintroduce workshops within the schools from September 2021.
4.2

As part of the Schools Offer, TACTIC have been successful in securing regular,
weekly mentoring sessions within Leighton Middle school. This will consist of
staff attending for three hours per week, at regular allocated times, during the
school term of 39 weeks. This will bring in an income of around £2340.00 per
annum.

5 MENTORING AND ONE TO ONE SUPPORT
5.1

This area of work has taken a very different work angle in terms of requests for
1:1 support. The demand for this service has become a huge focus for TACTIC
in terms of delivery hours. Referrals are coming in from schools, parents, selfreferrals from young people, CAMHS (Child and Adolescent Mental Health
Services), and increasingly from Doctor’s surgeries.
The ongoing theme for support is around anxiety, Panic attacks, self-esteem,
and relationships. To date TACTIC has 27 open cases, and a further 12 cases
on a waiting list. As above, (para. 4.2) TACTIC has secured regular mentoring
sessions in Leighton Middle school from September.

6. VOLUNTEER TRAINING
6.1

TACTIC is linking up with ‘High Fives’ group to deliver training to young
people volunteers for both TACTIC and High Fives. The training will run over
3 days during May and June 2021, and will consist of an introduction to
volunteering, key skills, building resilience, health and safety and basic
safeguarding.
To date 11 young people have signed up to the session. Should more young
people want to get involved then a further session will be arranged.

7. ATTENDANCE STATISTICS
7.1

Figures for this quarter remain low due to Covid-19 restrictions and closure of
general drop-in sessions although to date the 1:1 work remains steady as per
above. 1:1s are given on a face-to-face basis when possible as well as by
telephone. Demand for the service continues to increase.

Page 59

Feb to Apr
Under 16
16 & over
Male
Female
Total for Feb to Apr

7.2

2019
1080
356
747
689
1437

2020
784
219
515
488
1003

2021
46
36
48
34
82

School workshops are pending at present due to the latest lockdown; it is
planned to promote these with the schools once they have returned to normal
attendance.

8. TACTIC BUILDING
8.1

In response to Council’s Environmental Aims, work was completed in April
2021 to convert the centre lights to LED energy saving lights.

9. DONATIONS
9.1

TACTIC has been fortunate to receive pleasing feedback from schools, parents,
and young people for its service provision which has been shared with
Members through the weekly Councillor newsletter. Thanks for the service has
translated into financial donations. A total of £470 has been donated from
thankful parents and businesses. The break down is shown below:

1) £200 from a former Youth Forum Member and centre user in thanks for
support over the years of her attendance.
2) £200 from local business, ‘On the Level’, for TACTIC’s support for young
people.
3) £70 from a thankful parent whose child received 1:1 support and has
now successfully qualified for university.
The funds are being invested into activities for the young people, e.g., the
garden project. This is a place for 1:1 conversation, therapeutic gardening
activity, activity space, etc.

10 STAFFING
10.1

A member of staff will commence maternity leave in mid-June. It is not
planned to recruit maternity cover. Overtime will be made available to staff
and workload will be monitored. Should additional support be required, it is
proposed to use agency staff.

Page 60

11. CONCLUSION
11.1

TACTIC continues to experience Covid related ongoing disruption which is
causing young people to lose a regular source of face-to-face support.
However, staff have continued to offer support to the most vulnerable young
people with socially distanced 1:1 session. Staff also continue to support
vulnerable young people through school visits.

11.2. Future project work over the coming months is listed below.
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)

TANG (TACTIC Additional Needs Group).
Volunteer training.
Relaunch of Youth Drop in.
Youth Volunteer recruitment and relaunch.
Mentoring.
School workshops.
Garden Project.
Summer programme.
Carnival.

END.

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62

TACTIC ANNUAL WORK PLAN – 2021-2022
SERVICE NAME:

TACTIC - APPENDIX B

TACTIC - Teenage Advice and Teenage Information Centre

CORE SERVICE
PROJECT

AIMS

OBJECTIVES

Page 63

1

After school
drop-in facility

To provide a safe environment
for young people to come
after school and socialise with
their peers, whilst having
youth worker support
available.

To offer 5 after school
drop-in sessions at
TACTIC

2

Mentoring

To enable and empower
young people to develop
their own skills and
strategies to deal with
issues affecting them and
make positive choices.

To offer one-to-one
mentoring support to
young people aged 12 –
19 years with a
qualified Youth Worker

3

‘Talk It out’
project

To have Youth workers by
the telephones at specific
time each week to offer
weekly ‘Call us’ sessions for
young people to have chat
with a youth worker in
confidence.

To allow additional
support for young
people during COVID19 restrictions ensuring
they have access to
support.

1

HOW SUCCESS WILL BE
MEASURED
 Daily / weekly
attendance figures.
 Feedback from young
people – annual
service user survey.

TIMETABLE FOR
DELIVERY
Weekdays 3:30
pm – 6pm.
Ongoing

UPDATES

 Attendance
 Feedback from Young
person
 Feedback from Parent
/ school
 use of Youth Web
monitoring/
recording
 Phone Calls
 Feedback from staff
 Feedback from young
people

40 Per year.
Ongoing

Ongoing
Currently 24 open
case and 14 on
waiting list

Commencing 9th
Feb 2021

Completed

Sessions reduced
to 3 per week due
to Covid
restrictions.
Ongoing

TACTIC ANNUAL WORK PLAN – 2021-2022

TACTIC - APPENDIX B

Sessions every Thursday
2pm – 4pm
4

Page 64
5

6

Sexual Health

To deter young people from
risky taking behaviour.
Relationship support.
Referrals to specialist
agencies where necessary

To offer information on
sexual health matters.
Deliver the condom
card scheme,
pregnancy testing and
Chlamydia screening
(trained/qualified staff
only)

 Data collected locally
and nationally.
 Young person’s
feedback

Ongoing

Ongoing

Sexual Health
and
relationships
weekly Sessions

To offer weekly facility for
young people to book
appointment and receive
necessary support – every
Wednesday 2pm – 4pm

To allow young people
to maintain ongoing
support during Covid19 restrictions.

 Attendance
 Young Persons
feedback

Commencing
Wednesday Feb
3rd 2pm- 4pm.
Ongoing weekly.

Moved to daily
support now that
the centre is back
open

Red Box Project

TACTIC has signed up to the
Red Box Project which is a
community-based, charity,
which aims to support
young people throughout
their periods by providing
red boxes filled with free
period products to local
schools and clubs

To ensure young
people have access to
free period products.

 Uptake
 Number of products
distributed.
 Young Person’s
feedback

Ongoing

Ongoing

To encourage and support
the involvement

For young people to be
the voice of the wider

Youth Forum

To address Period
Poverty

2

 Attendance at
meetings

5 New young
people recruited

TACTIC ANNUAL WORK PLAN – 2021-2022

7

Hire of Building

Page 65

of young people who want
to make a difference both
within the TACTIC centre
and in their local
community.

community whilst
developing new skills
and confidence

To recruit new volunteer
young people to join forum
when possible, using the
schools as a contact point.

To allow other young
people to contribute
their ideas to the wider
community and get
involved in
volunteering.
Space provided for
community groups /
agencies and
businesses to use as
venue for meetings,
gatherings, small
community events etc.

To maximise use of TACTIC
building
To increase usage and
income for council assets.

8

Holiday Projects

To provide holiday activities
for young people aged 12 19

TACTIC - APPENDIX B

 Project Delivery
 Youth progress
 Social progress

for the activity rebranded to ’We
Are Youth’
Ongoing fortnightly
meetings

To explore interest and
use of venue by small
businesses as a place to
network and access
amenities, e.g.,
meeting room.
Young people able to
take part in affordable
activities during

3

Uptake of new
volunteers

Commence asap
– ongoing.

 Hours of building use
outside of core
delivery
 Businesses uptake
 Hirers feedback

To reinstate this
provision as soon
as possible and
health and safety
measures allow.

Now taking
bookings for hire
since Covid.

 Attendance
 Young Person
Feedback

To reinstate this
provision asap
with additional
more substantial

Low key this
summer due to
Covid, however,
outreach and Park

Venue hirers now
booking again, e.g.
NOAH booked for 2
days per week
from November

TACTIC ANNUAL WORK PLAN – 2021-2022
holidays and maintain
social networks.

Promotion and
public
communication

Maintain web site and
social media
communications

Centre to provide
remote access to
services and support
networks.

10

Environmental
ambitions

Deliver the Council’s
Environmental Ambitions.

Raise environmental
awareness,
understanding and
knowledge among
young people.

Page 66

9

Support the personal
development of young
people through
practical environmental
projects and activities.

11

School Liaison

Develop working liaison
with schools and provide
support for young people in
the school environment.

Deliver activities as per
TACTIC Environmental
Project Plan
Attend regular
assemblies at local
middle and upper
school
4

 Recorded ‘Likes’,
‘Shares’, ‘Reach’ and
‘Followers’ of posts on Facebook/Twitter
 Young person
feedback
 Community feedback
 Young person
Feedback
 Community Feedback
 Participation in
projects
 Delivery of TACTIC
environmental
project plan activities.

 Uptake from schools
 Young person
feedback
 School feedback

TACTIC - APPENDIX B
activities due to
funding from
previous year
carried forward.
Ongoing

activities took
place

To continue to
reinforce
measures with
young people
once restrictions
are lifted.

Ongoing

Ongoing

COMPLETED- LED
lighting

Recycling
ongoing.

To continue to
offer support to
schools during
restrictions and

Ongoing throughout COVID
with mentoring
and workshops to

TACTIC ANNUAL WORK PLAN – 2021-2022
Maximise TACTIC resources
and generate income.
Promote services for young
people

Page 67

12

13

Playschemes

Community
Forum

To offer Easter and Summer
activities for 8–11year olds

To ascertain intelligence
gathering for ongoing Youth
Survey.

Deliver Schools, Offer
workshops in line with
PHSE (Physical Health
and Social Education)
curriculum to local
middle and upper
schools in LLTC.
Plan and deliver
themed workshops to
support young people’s
personal and social
development.
To provide affordable
activities in local
community for younger
age children
Positive introduction to
TACTIC for future
attendance
Provide a set of 5 core
questions for young
people to express their
views and for staff to
feedback findings to
wider forum.

5

TACTIC - APPENDIX B

 Annual budget
income targets

support young
people.

continue in Sept
‘21

 Attendance
 Feedback from young
people
 Feedback from
parents / carers

To reinstate the
sessions during
Easter and
Summer as soon
as possible
providing
activities for 8–
11-year-olds
Ongoing
Planning stages

Full schemes not
delivered due to
Covid-19. To
recommence in
2022.

 Issues raised.
 Ongoing themes
Participation in survey

Ongoing

TACTIC ANNUAL WORK PLAN – 2021-2022

14

GDPR
Ref: 87/P&F
Risk registers
and Action plan
20/01/20

Additional work planned to
extend this initiative to a
wider audience

To ascertain wider
collaborative feedback
to determine future
goals

Maintain GDPR protocols

Review data
management practices
to ensure all aspects of
GDPR are being
instigated and adhered
to

 Findings from review
reported to Policy
and Finance
Committee

TACTIC - APPENDIX B

Ongoing

Ongoing

Ongoing during
restrictions with
measures in
place.
weekly (term
time)
On hold until
restrictions
eased.

Continued
throughout COVID.

SATELLITE AND PROJECT WORK

Page 68

15

16

TANG- Teenage
Additional
Needs Group

Positive
activities /
Basketball

To encourage young people
to socialise with other
young people with similar
issues.

To offer weekly Youth
Club for young people
with additional needs
at Mentmore Pavilion.

 Attendance
 Young person
feedback
 Parent / Carer
feedback

To provide alternative
activities for young people
with the view to support
reduction in Anti-Social
Behaviour.

To provide weekly
activity for young
people with qualified
coach

 Attendance
 Young Person
Feedback
 Community feedback

To provide young people
with activities in support of
their wellbeing.

To encourage healthy
living

6

Ongoing

On hold to be
reviewed in new
year (subject to
staffing)

TACTIC ANNUAL WORK PLAN – 2021-2022
17

Positive
activities / Box
Release

Provide affordable access to
personal development
activities.
To provide additional
complimentary activity for
young people to further
tackle Anti-Social Behaviour
To provide young people
with activities in support of
their wellbeing.

Page 69

18

19

Satellite Venues

Outreach Work

To allow for young
people to channel
frustrations in safe
environment

 Attendance
 Young person
feedback
 Community feedback

On hold until
restrictions are
eased.

On hold to be
reviewed in new
year (subject to
staffing)

 Feedback from
community
 Feedback from young
people
 Feedback from local
agencies/ services

On hold until
restrictions are
eased

On hold to be
reviewed in new
year (subject to
staffing)

 General feedback
from staff team

On hold due to
Covid - 19

Ongoing as and
when required.

To encourage healthy
living

Provide affordable access to
personal development
activities.
To utilise local venues for
Review current services
satellite working e.g.,
for young people within
Vandyke Centre
the parish and increase
locality provision where
Ref: LLTC 5-Year Plan
possible.

To offer outreach facility
during the summer months

TACTIC - APPENDIX B

Utilise local intelligence
from other agencies/
services to target areas
needing intervention,
e.g., ASB / Police
information
To reach young people
at their point of contact

7

TACTIC ANNUAL WORK PLAN – 2021-2022
when numbers at TACTIC
are traditionally lower.

20

Garden
Refurbishment

Improve/ enhance the
TACTIC facility to extend
use of outdoor area.

To promote activities
and encourage
participation
To identify gaps in
provision
Provide a pleasant area
for young people and
hirers to relax and
enjoy the fresh air.

Page 70

Project to act as a motivator
for young people to get
Young people to gain
involved in therapeutic
new skills and
environmental issues
confidence. By helping
plan and deliver the
project.
21

Youth
counselling /
CHUMS

To offer local service to
young people in
conjunction with external
agencies
To seek further funding for
2020-2021

Increase emotional
resilience and
wellbeing
Provide therapeutic
safe space for young
people to share
feelings, experiences
and emotions
Equip young people
with strategies to

8

TACTIC - APPENDIX B

 Young person
feedback
 Survey results

Continued
throughout
summer 21

 Outdoor area
enhanced
 Feedback from young
people
 Feedback from Hirers
 Evidence of Young
people’s learning

To reintroduce
this project when
restrictions are
eased.

COMPLETED

 Young person
feedback
 Agency feedback
 Parental / carer /
school feedback
 Attendance

To revisit this
project once
restrictions are
eased.

Did not take place
during Covid-19
restrictionscurrently being
reviewed for
remainder of
2021/22

TACTIC ANNUAL WORK PLAN – 2021-2022
22

Staff Careers
Training

To upskill staff to undertake
necessary training to allow
them to deliver workshops.

23

Delivery of
Careers
Workshops

To offer additional support
to young people by
providing
information, support, and

Page 71

guidance to help you make
decisions on learning,
training and work.

support anxiety and
depression
To ensure staff have up
to date knowledge to
support young people
in their journey.

To provide young
people with the skills
and knowledge they
need to make
important decisions
throughout life.

To offer this support as a
weekly drop-in at TACTIC.
TO extend this to providing
lunchtime workshops within
upper schools

9

TACTIC - APPENDIX B

 Staff courses
successfully
completed.

July - September
2021

On hold due to
staffing vacancies

 School uptake
 Young person’s
feedback

September 2021

On hold due to
staffing vacancies

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72

Agenda Item 12

Cultural and Economic Services Committee
Date: 13 September 2021
Title: General Service Updates
Purpose of the Report: To inform Committee of service work activity.
Contact Officer: Vivien Cannon, Head of Cultural and Economic Services
Corporate Objective/s
Implications:
Financial
Human Resources
Operational/Service
delivery
Procedural/Legal
Risk/Health and Safety
Environmental Aims

LLTC Five Year Plan – Aim 3.
Vibrancy and Vitality of Town and Town Centre
Yes. Utilising annual budgets
Yes. Service work updates
Yes. Children’s Trail copyright matter, para. 6.3
Yes. Ambition No.4. Working in collaboration with
Fairtrade Leighton Linslade

1 RECOMMENDATION
Should members be minded, the recommendation is:
1.1 To endorse the securing of legal advice and to draw up necessary formal
communications that protect the copyright of the Children’s Trail and in consultation
with the Town Clerk allocate £1000 from Professional Fees (annual budget, 12/4384)
for this purpose.
1.2 To allocate £xxx from earmarked reserves (970/9044) towards standalone 3D
motifs for the 2021 scheme.

2 BACKGROUND
2.1 The activities and responsibilities of the Cultural and Economic Service (C&E) are
broad and diverse. Below are brief updates on service activitiy to inform Committee of
projects completed and ongoing.

Page 73

2.2 Committee was unable to convene for its June meeting and service updates
were shared via email to ensure Members were kept up to date with work. The June
update is attached at Appendix A, to serve as a reminder.
3 INFORMATION
3.1 Council has reached the half-way point in its contract from town centre WiFi and
Footfall counting. This work is funded by S106 funds as approved by Central
Bedfordshire Council (CBC).
3.2 Town Centre Wi-Fi
3.2.2 When signing up, individuals are asked to give their marketing consent. The
table below shows visitors per month during 2021. To date, WiFi has 1,338
registrations.
Month

Monthly
registrations

Weekly
registrations

Daily
registrations

Comments

January

29

7

1

31 days

February

28

9

1

28 days

March
April

57

14

2

31 days

85

21

3

May

87

22

3

30 days
12 April 2021, non-essential
trade reopened
31 days

June

121

30

4

30 days

July

127

32

4

31 days

August

91

23

3

31 days

3.3. Town Centre Geo-Sense, footfall monitoring
3.3.1 Committee is now able to compare the first full year of data with this second
year. The anniversary date for going live with the footfall kit is 2 nd January (2020).
Month

Average
visitors per
day 2020

Average
visitors per
day 2021

January

7947

2752

31 days

February

8182

3117

28 days

March

6146

3407

31 days

April

3885

4021

30 days
12 April 2021, non-essential trade
reopened

Page 74

Comments

May

4391

3999

31 days

June

5210

3948

30 days

July

5880

3457

31 days

August

6418

3069

31 days

3.4 Public Convenience (Multi-Storey Car Park)
3.4.1 In late June, the government published its prospectus for funding applications
towards increasing Changing Places toilets across localities. The funding is available
through principal authority level and Central Bedfordshire Council (CBC) offices have
indicated their intent to submit an expression of interest for the CBC area by 26
September.
3.4.2 CBC officers have advised that the funding criteria would not apply to the West
Street multi-storey car park facilities site. The criteria requires that funding is used to
create a net increase (additionality) of toilets and the removal of the current disabled
toilet in the foyer to create a Changing Places toilet would require the loss of a toilet
to install the facility.
3.4.3 Due to the timescale for submitting an expression of interest, CBC officers
have advised that the ability to meaningfully consult on possible locations is limited
although there was indication that the business community may be canvassed as
they may have a suitable location. Officers have offered alternative suggestions,
e.g., Leighton Library Theatre or attaching a module to an existing CBC owned
property. Committee have alternative ideas, officers will pass them on to CBC. It
remains a CBC decision.
3.4.4 CBC’s estimate cost of installing a Changing Places Toilet in the West Street
were in the order of £60k 2-3 years ago with the cost likely to have now increased.
3.5 Pigeon Management Grant Scheme
3.5.1 The grant was closed in February 2021. 11 properties with Grade II status have
to seek CBC Planning consent prior to starting the works and are liaising directly with
CBC. Due the time this process may take, Committee had agreed to extend the
completion deadline for works, (Ref. 88/CE). Seeking and securing an appropriate
location for the pigeon loft is ongoing.
3.6 Greensand Ridge Walk and Cycleway Gateway Feature
3.6.1 The Greensand Country Gateway Feature project, led by The Greensand
Trust, (TGT), successfully recruited artist Stephen Pardue of Differentia in June who
then attended the town on market day, 27 July, to secure public input into the design
and survey the locality for the feature.

Page 75

3.6.2 TGT has commissioned a level survey for the area and its surrounds to support
the installation plus the water bottle fountain. Once the survey is completed the Artist
can progress the designs to finalisation. Officers anticipate a steering group meeting
will to be convened at this point.
3.6.3 The budget for the artwork is £18,000, consisting of £13k from a local charity
trust with other grant funds secured by the Greensand Trust. In addition to this, the
Council has made available funds up to £10k for a bottled water facility to be added
to the project. The £10k was received by the Council in the form of a donation with
the purpose to assist Council in achieving its aims. Securing the water facility was a
condition set by the local charitable trust. It complements the Council’s own strategic
ambition to install water drinking fountains in the larger parks. (Ref. 41, Five Year
Plan 2019-2014) and Council’s Environmental Aims to encourage people to drink
water (No. 8. To encourage the parish to drink more water).
3.7

Buzzard Trails

3.7.1 Officers have secured content form The Greensand Trust, (TGT), on the
Sands of Time trail suitable to create a new trail to add to the Council’s Buzzard
Trails App. Background work of putting it up on the app site is due to commence
following the delivery of the Proms in the Park on 11 September.
3.7.2 Committee will receive a fuller update on the Trail development as part of the
Events Update report agenda item.
3.7.3.The Children’s Trail has been placed onto the app platform too and work will be
undertaken to separate each trail out with its own maps to ensure the trails become
easier to use.

4 BLACK HISTORY MONTH
4.1 Delivering activity for Black History Month (BHM) commenced with a
collaboration between Leighton-Linslade Carnival, Centre for Carnival Arts UK and
the Town Council towards celebrating Carnival traditions in July. As officers walked
alongside the carnival procession, many Black community members commented on
the unexpected sight of colourful and elaborate costumes from the Caribbean
traditions of carnival. The inclusion of Caribbean traditions celebrated the different
cultures within our community and provided common ground in a shared experience.
4.2 During October BHM, two residents have come forward to work with the Council
in support of increasing parishioner’s knowledge and understanding of Black history
in the UK and issues of racism. To kick start the month, the Town Mayor will
introduce the speaker delivering a talk on how and why Black people came to the
UK. During October, four two-hour sessions will be delivered on racism for members
of the public to join. This work builds on the Council’s recent endorsement of its
Equal Opportunities Policy and the Local Government Association’s published
equalities statement. This stage of work aims at raising awareness of BHM, the
issues of racism and celebration of Black members of our community.

Page 76

5 COP26 (United Nations Conference on Climate Change)
5.1 A precursor to November’s COP26 conference in Glasgow this year is ‘The
Great Big Green Week’, running 18-26 September. This is promoted by the Climate
Change Coalition, a non-governmental organisation (NGO) consisting of similarly
minded groups of which Fairtrade UK is a member.
5.2 Officers are working with Fairtrade Leighton-Linslade (FLL) steering group
towards supporting community member’s communicate their hopes and wishes
during this week for a sustainable future to world leaders through the creation of a
‘message template’ published in the September/ October About Town newsletter.
Fairtrade LL will lead on the receiving and gathering of these messages and share
them with Fairtrade UK who will then submit them along with NGO coalition partners.
5.2 Officers have supported FLL in the creation of social media messaging that will
go out before and during the week-long campaign. FLL will also be attending the
market on Saturday 25 September to promote the campaign and build awareness of
the COP26 conference.
5.3 This work supports Council’s Environmental Ambition No. 4. to encourage social
and environmental responsibility. It also builds on the existing relationship Council
has with FFL in being a Fairtrade Town (also referred to as a Fairtrade Community).
6 CHILDREN’S TRAIL
6.1 Cedars Upper School Art tutors have agreed to work with officers on creating a
new trail in Linslade Recreation Ground. Officers are drafting a specification
document for their students to work to that will include an emphasis on stories that
are based on or reference trees. It is anticipated that the new trail will launch in July /
August 2022.
6.2 A budget for materials, firing of the clay items would be required and will be
sourced from the existing annual budget.
6.3 Over recent months officers have identified and monitored the success of a local
business, Treasure Maps Trails Limited, who has referenced and depicted (hand
drawings), Children’s Trail Artworks as clues within their maps. Following the
installation of the Children’s Trail, the ownership and copyright of the Artwork was
vested to the Town Council.
6.4 Officers have informally made the company aware of their use of Children’s Trail
Artworks and that the Town Council holds the copyright. Officers have also
expressed concern that the public could confuse the free to access Children’s Trail
with the pay to use Treasure Map Trail thus opt not to enjoy the public asset.
6.5 Whilst there may be a lack of knowledge of the company in including other
people’s assets in their trail, Committee may wish to initiate a legal challenge

Page 77

insisting on the removal of any reference of Children’s Trail Artworks in the maps. A
second option would be to collaborate with the company towards promoting the
Children’s Trail to the customers who have bought the Treasure Map Trail through
securing advertising space on the printed maps and clear messaging that separates
the two trails. The company has indicated a willingness to the latter offering free
advertising space and written information about the trail.
6.6 Either of the above options have merit in protecting the public asset. For either
circumstance, officers would seek Committee’s agreement in securing legal advice.
This may then lead to legal action, a formal letter may be enough to instigate an
amendment to the Treasure Trails Map, TBC, or a letter setting out the parameters
of an agreement as per the latter option. It is proposed to allocate £1000 from
Professional Fees (annual budget, 12/4384) to secure advice and any necessary
legal letter.

7 WELCOME BACK FUND
7.1 Ordering of work started in early July. For some products the lead-in time to
receive orders is prolonged as suppliers either make the items up (gazeboes) or
import them, etc. The bus advert went live in August. One bus back is being used
and bus changes routes regularly so the advert will be seen by various communities.
External capacity has been secured and a programme of delivery has been planned,
e.g., entertainment to commence in September pending purchase arrangements with
CBC. The Welcome back resident letter will go out in September. Work remains
ongoing till March 2022.

9 SUMMARY
8.1
The above activity continues to stretch the reach of Committees’ influence in
support of its Town and the communities within.

End

Page 78

CULTURAL AND ECONOMIC SERVICES COMMITTEE (14TH JUNE 2021)
2 BACKGROUND
2.1

The activities and responsibilities of the Cultural and Economic Service (C&E)
are broad and diverse. Below are brief updates on service activitiy to inform
Committee of projects completed and ongoing.

3 INFORMATION
3.2

Town Centre Wi-Fi

3.2.1 When signing up, individuals are asked to give their marketing consent. If they
agree, their contact is stored within the contractor’s system. The table below
records the visitors stored in the database, those giving marketing consent,
per month between January and May 2021.
Month

Monthly
registration

Weekly
registrations

Daily
registrations

Comments

January

29

7

1

31 days

February

28

9

1

28 days

March
April

57
85

14
21

2
3

May

87

22

3

31 days
30 days
12 April 2021, non-essential
trade reopened
31 days

3.2.3 People can sign up to the WiFi through their Facebook account or by
completing a registration form. Officers received contact from a member of the
public requesting that more options be added to the registration form question
on gender. Instead of two options, ‘male’ or ‘female’, a third option of ‘other’
has now been added. This change improved the equality of the registration
process and influenced a change across the country where the WiFi
contractor provides its service.
3.3

Town Centre Geo-Sense, footfall monitoring

3.3.1 Committee is now able to compare the first full year of data with this second
year. The anniversary date for going live with the footfall kit is 2nd January
(2020).

Page 79

3.4

Month

Average
visitors per
day 2020

Average
visitors per
day 2021

January

7947

2752

31 days

February

8182

3117

28 days

March

6146

3407

31 days

April

3885

4021

May

4391

3999

30 days
12 April 2021, non-essential trade
reopened
31 days

Comments

Public Convenience (Multi-Storey Car Park)

3.4.1 Officers have been informed by Central Bedfordshire Council (CBC) that they
await an update from central government, due in June, on a grant prospectus
that would fund specialist Changing Places facilities. CBC would likely submit
an expression of interest followed by an application depending on the grant
conditions. One of which may include the requirement for match funding.
3.5

Pigeon Management Grant Scheme

3.5.1 Applications came in for 18 properties for an overall grant fund total of
£20,358.18. (£34k was allocated to this project). By the end of May, 7
properties had completed the work and received their grant payment. All but
one of these properties were not classified as being Grade II listed.
3.5.2 As a condition of the grant, applicants for the remaining 11 properties with
Grade II status had to seek CBC Planning consent prior to starting the works.
Due the time this process may take, Committee had previously been asked to
extend the completion deadline for works, (Ref. 88/CE).
3.6

Greensand Ridge Walk and Cycleway Gateway Feature

3.6.1 The Gateway Feature project, led by The Greensand Trust, has progressed
work and at the time of writing this report, an artist was due to be
commissioned. The deadline for the project’s completion is 30th September
2021 and prior to this date, an element of public engagement will take place
towards influencing the final design and informing people of the plans to install
the gateway feature.
3.6.2 The budget for the artwork is £18,000, consisting of £13k from a local charity
trust with other grant funds secured by the Greensand Trust. In addition to
this, the Council has made available funds up to £10k for a bottled water
facility to be added to the project. The £10k was received by the Council in the
form of a donation with the purpose to assist Council in achieving its aims.
Securing the water facility was a condition set by the local charitable trust. It

Page 80

complements the Council’s own strategic ambition to install water drinking
fountains in the larger parks. (Ref. 41, Five Year Plan 2019-2014) and
Council’s Environmental Aims to encourage people to drink water (No. 8. To
encourage the parish to drink more water).
3.7

Buzzard Trails

3.7.1 Committee confirmed its support to fund work on creating an interpretation of
The Greensand Trust’s, (TGT), Sands of Time trail, for the Buzzard Trails app.
(Ref: 74/CE, b). Work commenced early 2021 with a TGT officer reviewing the
content, images, and audio transcripts for transfer to the app. It will likely be a
shorter version of the trail because the content of the original audio memories
is long, and the trail crosses the boundary line into Health and Reach so six
out of the 9 trail locations will be included. The app. will serve to bring Sands
of Time trail to more people and then signpost them to the website hosting the
complete trail. This work in ongoing at the time of writing the report.

4 BLACK HISTORY MONTH
4.1

Committee requested that officers explore the potential for delivering an event
for Black History Month UK (BHM), promoting a period to highlight and celebrate
the lives and work of black people in our country, and across the world. BHM takes
place annually and internationally over the month of October. One idea was to
deliver a themed Living History Day (LHD). Following the completion of the
Task and Finish review of the Living History Day event, a themed event is no
longer being considered.

4.2

During the review of LHD, an idea was put forward to celebrate residents of
black heritage in The Buzzard Trails – Living History Trail. Further
consideration on this idea from officers led to a recommendation that trail
characters of any given background should reference deceased residents
thus protecting living people. Celebration of living individuals could be better
served through the Council’s Community Volunteer Award or by bestowing an
Honorary Freeman to an individual.

4.3

The approach recommended to committee is to commence its first year of
council wide BHM celebration through a series of activities and allow this to
build over coming years, recruiting people of black heritage to influence and
take a lead in delivering activities for future years. This first year would take on
a purpose of raising the profile of the BHM awareness month and its purpose.
Importantly, it sends a positive message to our communities on our intent for
inclusivity for future celebration.

4.4

Committee will be mindful that adding to delivery work programmes will
require resources of people and budgets. It is hoped that working with
representative groups would serve to ensure authenticity whilst managing

Page 81

future resources. Committee may wish to include a budget growth item for
future years during budget setting considerations.
4.5

At the time of drafting this report, initial preparation of activities for October
2021 include:
1. Free 2-hour sessions a week beginning week through October for 4 weeks
providing discussion/awareness sessions hosted at the TACTIC centre.
The theme of “the much-needed conversation”, as per the Local
Government Association’s equalities statement adopted by Council. A
session programme is being drafted by a community member.
2. Leighton-Linslade Carnival and UK centre for Carnival Arts (UKCCA)
dedicated About Town newsletter article.
3. TACTIC themed activity.

4.6

Utilising annual budgets, UKCCA has been funded to deliver carnival costume
making workshops with TACTIC’s young people. Young people will attend
part of the Carnival procession alongside UKCCA representation. This cultural
exchange supports the Carnival’s 60th Anniversary year as well as Luton’s 45th
anniversary. Whilst quite different in delivery styles, the common theme of
carnival will provide a positive sharing platform for raising awareness of Black
Caribbean culture in a fun way and through a shared experience.

5

COP26 (United Nations Conference on Climate Change)

5.1

In exploring BHM, Committee also asked officers to explore how Council may
raise the profile of how climate issues in the UK impact on people in other
countries. The theme of this year’s Fairtrade Fortnight campaign was Climate,
Fairtrade and You. It raised awareness of how Fairtrade farmers are suffering
because of pollution created elsewhere impacting on growing conditions in
Fairtrade communities.

5.2

This year, the COP26 summit is being hosted in Glasgow from 1st to 12th
November. The summit brings parties together to push forward actions
towards the goals of the Paris Agreement and the UN Framework Convention
on Climate Change.

5.3

Fairtrade joining forces with the Climate Change Coalition is planning a
national campaign, The Great Big Green Week, 18th to 26th September 2021
seeks to gather people’s messages (pictures, letters, poems, etc), on the
issues of climate change they want leaders to address in time to send them to
the gathering for COP26 (via Non-Government Organisations like Fairtrade
(NGOs) . Fairtrade Leighton-Linslade steering group has welcomed the offer
to partner with the Council on delivering this campaign.

5.4

This work supports Councils Environmental Ambition No. 4. to encourage
social and environmental responsibility.

Page 82

5.5

Committee may also note that it is the 15th anniversary year of the formation
of Fairtrade Leighton-Linslade steering group and the Town’s Fairtrade Town
accreditation. At the time of drafting this report, content copy was being
signed off for the About Town newsletter to celebrate this and raise
awareness of The Great Big Green Week in the next issue of the Council’s
newsletter.

5.6

In the September and October newsletter issue, a template page will be
created for residents to write, paint, etc. their climate messages and hopes for
the future. They will be encouraged to display them in their home windows
and send photographs to the Fairtrade Leighton-Linslade Facebook page so
that their messages can be shared in time for the COP26 conference.

5.7

Officers believe that partnering with local representative and interest groups is
a more sustainable and learning approach for undertaking such work, similar
to that said at para. 4.4. Committee will be mindful that adding to delivery work
programmes will require resources of people and budgets. It is hoped that
working with representative groups would serve to ensure authenticity whilst
managing future resources. Committee may wish to include budget growth
item for future years during budget setting considerations.

6 DIVERSITY DAY
6.1

At its last meeting, Committee asked officers to consider the idea of delivering
a Diversity Day event or activity. Committee will be aware that over recent
years the Council’s event programme has incorporated diversity through its
commissioned entertainments and food provision and officers will continue to
increase this approach. For example, The Big Lunch Food Festival
incorporates world foods in its offer.

6.2

Similar to the above approach for celebration of the well-established national
BHM, officers would suggest working with diverse community representatives
to celebrate significant calendar dates that are meaningful. This may well take
time and build-up to a regular list of activity. Taking this work forward would
again require consideration of current resources, people and budgets.

6.3

Committee may be aware that the Democratic and Central Services team is
putting together a series of social media posts that would promote the
Council’s equality statement and principles along with celebrating events and
significant dates that occur in the annual diversity calendar.

7.

CHILDREN’S TRAIL 10TH ANNIVERSARY

7.1

The Children’s Trail will reach its 10th anniversary year in 2022. This is
partway acknowledged within the Welcome Back Fund application with a sum
of £3,000 pounds being requested to erect one or two large scale mice
representing the Guardian of the trail towards celebration and to enhance its
profile.

Page 83

7.2

Committee has previously asked officers to explore other ways of adding to
the Children’s Trail. The Trail has a new audience of children each year and
its length, both distance and the time it takes to complete it is considered just
right for children to cope with. The proposal is to take the theme of children’s
literature and apply it in a different location and in a different way.

7.3

The aim would be to gather tree themed children’s stories and create tree
themed ceramic characters which are installed in the trees at Linslade
Recreation Ground. The Head of Grounds and Environmental Services,
responsible for the parks, has agreed to the idea and would advise on fixing
techniques.

7.4

Similarly to the principles of community involvement in the creation of the
Children’s trail, the aim would be to work with the art department of a local
school and work with students to create the characters that link to the
literature. Initial discussion to this end is underway to secure the support of
the school for a September onwards period of making, in readiness for
installation in 2022. Should it not be possible for a school to support the work,
a local ceramicist would be approached to facilitate the delivery of workshops
to create the characters and complete the works.

7.5

A budget for materials, firing of the clay items would be required and will be
sourced from the existing annual budget. If a backstop of commissioning a
ceramicist is needed a larger budget may be needed and Committee will be
informed of this in September.

7.6

During 2021, the Trail will undergo general maintenance using earmarked
reserves previously endorsed by committee, (Ref. 88/CE, £2k, 9018/970).

8.

WELCOME BACK FUND

8.1

In May the Council submitted a plan and application to CBC for the
government’s Welcome Back Fund. The aim of the fund is to help stimulate
the return to economic activity to town centres and high streets. At the time of
writing this report, the outcome of the application is unknown.

8.2

The opportunity to assist local businesses through this grant is a good
opportunity for the Council and work focuses on the themes of business
support, ambience, and reinvigoration of the Town Centre. Committee will be
aware that the additional work activities included in this application along with
the need to provide monitoring evidence of spend, etc. falls upon this service
team. Some external capacity has been applied for to buy-in additional project
delivery support.

9.

SUMMARY

Page 84

9.1

The above activity continues to stretch the reach of Committees’ influence in
support of its Town and the communities within.

End

Page 85

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86

Agenda Item 13

Cultural and Economic Services
Date:

13 September 2021

Title:

Budget Report

Purpose of the Report:
To monitor Committee’s budget cost centre.
Contact Officer:
Vivien Cannon, Head of Cultural and Economic Services

Corporate Objective/s

Implications:
Financial
Human Resources
Operational/Service
delivery
Procedural/Legal
Risk/Health and Safety

LLTC Five Year Plan Vibrancy and Vitality of The
Town Centre: To continue to support a vibrant town
through partnership working and initiatives including
management of the street markets, support for local
businesses, town and community promotions and
town centre enhancements.
Yes. 2021/22 budget spend including earmarked
reserves.

Yes. Budget spend to facilitate operational delivery
Yes. Spend as per financial rules.

Environmental Aims

1 RECOMMENDATION
Should members be minded, the proposal is:
1.1

To note the report.

2. BUDGET INFORMATION
2.1 Current year budget report is attached at Appendix A along with current year
earmarked reserves budget report attached at Appendix B.

Page 87

2.2 Committee has agreed allocation of earmarked spend that is still to be undertaken
due to Covid-19 impacting on work delivery.

3. EARMARKED RESERVES
3.1 The table attached at Appendix C gives detail regarding Committee’s current
earmarked reserves. The table provides Committee with a ‘running total’ showing what
spend Committee has agreed. The Council’s financial system only shows ‘committed’
spend so if a project is yet to achieve completion, the allocated budget will not show
on the Council’s financial system.

3 CONCLUSION
3.1 The pandemic has had an impact on work delivery however good progress
continues to be made utilising allocated budgets.

End.

Page 88

02/09/2021

Page 1

Leighton-Linslade Town Council

14:49

Detailed Income & Expenditure by Budget Heading 30/06/21

Month No: 3

Committee Report

Actual
Current Mth

Actual Year
To Date

Current
Annual Bud

Variance
Committed
Annual Total Expenditure

Funds
Available

% Spent

Cultural & Economic
101 Community Projects
1051 Canal Festival Income

0

1076 Business Networking Event Inc
1201 Sales
Community Projects :- Income
4000 Salaries
4008 Staff Travel
4013 Event Consultancy
4328 About Town

0

10,000

10,000

0.0%

0

0

1,250

1,250

0.0%

0

31

250

219

12.5%

0

31

11,500

11,469

10,615

33,052

146,408

113,356

113,356

22.6%

0.3%

0

61

700

639

639

8.7%

2,112

6,344

26,500

20,156

16,896

3,260

87.7%

666

1,223

4,000

2,777

903

1,874

53.1%

31,622

1,378

95.8%

3,750

6.3%

4412 Christmas Lights

0

0

33,000

33,000

4509 Buzzard Trails

0

250

4,000

3,750

4510 Business Development

0

0

2,250

2,250

2,250

0.0%

4511 Christmas Street Event

0

0

14,625

14,625

14,625

0.0%

4513 Band Concerts

2,035

2,350

7,100

4,750

2,744

2,006

71.7%

4516 Living History Day

0

0

1,000

1,000

230

770

23.0%

4518 General Promotions

0

0

3,000

3,000

3,000

0.0%

4552 Big Lunch

0

750

11,424

10,674

6,557

4,117

64.0%

4553 Salaries - Big Lunch

0

0

3,000

3,000

2,324

676

77.5%

4554 Community Access Defibrillator

0

0

1,000

1,000

1,000

0.0%

4572 Town Bunting

0

3,000

3,000

0

0

100.0%

4574 Business Campaigns

0

0

750

750

750

0.0%

1,141

2,232

5,000

2,768

2,768

44.6%

16,569

49,261

266,757

217,496

156,219

41.4%

(16,569)

(49,230)

(255,257)

(206,027)

1,224

1,254

0

(1,254)

(1,254)

0.0%

1,224

1,254

0

(1,254)

(1,224)

(1,254)

0

1,254

1000 Rent Receivable

0

0

750

750

0.0%

1005 School workshops

0

0

125

125

0.0%

1057 Activities - Income

0

0

500

500

0.0%

1180 Donation to Tactic

0

470

0

(470)

0.0%

0

470

1,375

905

34.2%

4920 Visitor Economy/Tourism
Community Projects :- Indirect Expenditure
Net Income over Expenditure

61,277

103 MTRF
4907 MTRF
MTRF :- Indirect Expenditure
Net Expenditure

0

(1,254)

104 TACTIC

TACTIC :- Income

Page 89

Continued over page

02/09/2021

Page 2

Leighton-Linslade Town Council

14:49

Detailed Income & Expenditure by Budget Heading 30/06/21

Month No: 3

Committee Report

Actual
Current Mth

4000 Salaries
4005 Staff Training

Actual Year
To Date

Current
Annual Bud

Variance
Committed
Annual Total Expenditure

Funds
Available

% Spent

13,896

41,824

168,000

126,176

126,176

24.9%

97

97

1,000

903

903

9.7%

4006 Staff Expenses/Allowances

0

0

200

200

200

0.0%

4008 Staff Travel

0

0

400

400

400

0.0%

4009 Protective Clothing

0

0

100

100

100

0.0%

13

18

4,700

4,682

0

776

3,000

2,224

4014 Projects
4100 Repairs & Maintenance
4131 Energy - Electricity

385

4,682

0.4%

1,839

38.7%

0

36

800

764

764

4.6%

4132 Energy - Gas

48

211

600

389

389

35.1%

4135 Water

12

36

400

364

364

9.0%

4145 Rates

0

6,737

6,940

204

204

97.1%

124

454

800

346

346

56.7%

36

36

300

264

264

12.0%

8

173

1,000

827

827

17.3%

4147 Service Charges
4150 Cleaning Materials
4300 Equipment - purchase
4309 IT Support

0

0

500

500

500

0.0%

4320 Telephones

50

153

650

497

497

23.6%

4321 Office Supplies

60

114

750

636

636

15.2%

0

0

150

150

150

0.0%

0

0

500

500

500

0.0%

173

173

0

(173)

(173)

0.0%

11

44

400

356

356

11.0%

0

260

350

90

90

74.3%

14,529

51,142

191,540

140,398

140,013

26.9%

(14,529)

(50,672)

(190,165)

(139,493)

4326 Subscriptions
4327 Publicity
4356 Expenditure from Donations
4374 Refreshments
4426 Refuse
TACTIC :- Indirect Expenditure
Net Income over Expenditure

385

412 Street Markets
1056 Starter Market

0

0

450

450

0.0%

1300 Tuesday Market

1,554

4,376

8,750

4,374

50.0%

1301 Saturday Market

2,497

5,440

11,250

5,810

48.4%

1302 Farmers Market

90

296

450

154

65.8%

1303 Speciality & Visiting Markets

0

0

375

375

0.0%

80

280

450

170

62.2%

0

0

550

550

0.0%

4,221

10,392

22,275

11,883

46.7%

8,116

21,023

89,478

68,455

68,455

23.5%

4001 Temporary Staff

0

0

2,500

2,500

2,500

0.0%

4005 Staff Training

0

0

300

300

300

0.0%

1304 Craft Markets
1305 Commercial Market
Street Markets :- Income
4000 Salaries

4008 Staff Travel
4080 Market Consultancy

0

0

200

200

200

0.0%

1,560

3,114

3,114

1

1

100.0%

Page 90

Continued over page

02/09/2021

Page 3

Leighton-Linslade Town Council

14:49

Detailed Income & Expenditure by Budget Heading 30/06/21

Month No: 3

Committee Report

Actual
Current Mth

4100 Repairs & Maintenance

183

4130 Security

Actual Year
To Date

Current
Annual Bud

Variance
Committed
Annual Total Expenditure

393

2,500

2,107

720

Funds
Available

% Spent

1,387

44.5%

0

0

5,500

5,500

5,500

0.0%

63

29

500

471

471

5.9%

4145 Rates

0

12,350

12,750

400

400

96.9%

4300 Equipment - purchase

0

211

1,000

789

789

21.1%

4322 Printing & Stationery

0

0

300

300

300

0.0%

4326 Subscriptions

0

369

500

131

131

73.8%

4131 Energy - Electricity

4381 Bank Charges

0

0

2,300

2,300

2,300

0.0%

4426 Refuse

643

1,819

8,400

6,581

6,581

21.7%

4519 Market Promotions

160

190

4,500

4,310

4,310

4.2%

10,725

39,498

133,842

94,344

720

93,624

30.0%

(6,504)

(29,106)

(111,567)

(82,461)

0

2,161

3,500

1,339

201

1,138

67.5%

Street Markets :- Indirect Expenditure
Net Income over Expenditure
413 Public Conveniences
4100 Repairs & Maintenance
4148 Management Fee

3,792

15,232

45,500

30,268

30,268

33.5%

4382 Insurances

0

0

100

100

100

0.0%

4422 Service Charges

0

0

3,000

3,000

3,000

0.0%

3,792

17,393

52,100

34,707

34,506

33.8%

(3,792)

(17,393)

(52,100)

(34,707)

Cultural & Economic :- Income

4,221

10,893

35,150

24,257

Expenditure

46,840

158,549

644,239

485,690

(42,619)

(147,656)

Grand Totals:- Income

4,221

10,893

35,150

24,257

Expenditure

46,840

158,549

644,239

485,690

Net Income over Expenditure

(42,619)

(147,656)

(609,089)

(461,433)

Movement to/(from) Gen Reserve

(42,619)

(147,656)

Public Conveniences :- Indirect Expenditure
Net Expenditure

Movement to/(from) Gen Reserve

Page 91

201

31.0%
62,583

423,107

34.3%

31.0%
62,583

423,107

34.3%

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 92

03/09/2021

Page 1

Leighton-Linslade Town Council

16:39

Detailed Income & Expenditure by Budget Heading 30/06/2021

Month No: 3

Cost Centre Report

Actual
Current Mth

Actual Year
To Date

Current
Annual Bud

Variance
Committed
Annual Total Expenditure

Funds
Available

% Spent

970 Cultural & Economic
9018 Economic Development

0

0

12,941

12,941

12,941

0.0%

9020 Tactic

0

0

3,999

3,999

3,999

0.0%

9021 Unspent S106

368

1,103

6,798

5,696

4,900

27.9%

9022 Community Access Defibrillator

0

0

1,008

1,008

1,008

0.0%

9026 Cultural & Economic Services

0

1,300

26,553

25,253

25,253

4.9%

9028 Signage

0

0

3,643

3,643

3,643

0.0%

9044 Christmas Lights

0

0

1,076

1,076

1,076

0.0%

9046 Accrued expenditure - 2020/21

0

0

385

385

385

0.0%

9049 Donations to Tactic

0

0

864

864

864

0.0%

9055 Public Conveniences

0

0

15,122

15,122

15,122

0.0%

9057 Community Projects

0

0

26,999

26,999

73

26,926

0.3%

9058 Canal Festival

796

750

1,291

19,925

18,634

3,843

14,791

25.8%

9059 Event - Salaries

0

0

9,115

9,115

248

8,868

2.7%

9505 Market Town Initiative

0

0

102,029

102,029

52,888

49,141

51.8%

1,117

3,694

230,457

226,763

57,848

168,916

26.7%

(1,117)

(3,694)

(230,457)

(226,763)

Grand Totals:- Income

0

0

0

0

Expenditure

1,117

3,694

230,457

226,763

Net Income over Expenditure

(1,117)

(3,694)

(230,457)

(226,763)

Movement to/(from) Gen Reserve

(1,117)

(3,694)

Cultural & Economic :- Indirect Expenditure
Net Expenditure

Page 93

0.0%
57,848

168,916

26.7%

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94

CULTURAL & ECONOMIC SERVICES COMMITTEE

13 SEPTEMBER 2021

EARMARKED RESERVES
EMR (970)
(9018)
Economic
Development
= £12,941
(2021/22)

Information / rationale
To fund ongoing Town Centre focused activity, e.g. street
furniture maintenance/updating, reprinting of shopping
directories, Town maps, town banners, etc. Town centre
attractions, e.g. Children’s Trail repairs.

 £1,000 contribution for delivery of 2020 Best Bar
None Award. Ref. 38/CE 2020/21 scheme
postponed, contribution to be rolled over for
2021/22 delivery.
 £63 remaining from 20219/20 carried forward
specifically for Annual Business Network Event,
Ref:9/CE.
 £1,609.50 remaining of 2020 LLTC Welcome
Back activity endorsed for creation of
promotional video Ref: 74/CE, 07/12/20.
 £2,000 from Buzzard Trails (4509/101) to fund
annual maintenance to the Children’s Trail.
Ref:88/CE.

APPENDIX C
Remaining
Less

£1,000

£63.00

£1,609.50

£2,000
= £8,268.50
Remaining
to allocate

(9020)
TACTIC
= £3,999
(2021/22)

(9049)
Donations to
TACTIC
£864
(2021/22)

To fund ongoing activity delivery, equipment refreshes,
building upkeep and maintenance.



£4,719.60 allocated to commission CHUMS
to deliver the Talk-space Wellbeing Service
in 2021/22, (£3,855.60 from 970/9020 and
£864 from 970/9049). Ref: 73/CE & Ref:
108 (Council).

Gifted from the public to be used to support the work of
TACTIC – activities for young people - and Youth Forum
raised funds for specific causes.



£864 spend on CHUMS Wellbeing service.
Ref: 71/CE & Ref: 108 (Council).

Less

£3,855.60

= £143.40
Remaining
to allocate
Less

£864
=£0
Remaining
to allocate

Page 95

(9022)
Community
Access
Defibrillators
£1,008
(2020/21)

Un-used budget is rolled forward to facilitate maintenance,
electricity supply and kit re-stock costs.

(9026)
Cultural &
Economic
Services
£26,553
(2021/22)

To support the achievement of Council 5-Year Plan
Objectives – e.g., pilot projects before long-term
commitments are made or ruled out.

Less

 £7,000, VE Day celebrations 2020, for Rotary
Leighton Linslade. (Ref. 26/CE)
 £900 to fund an increase in movie showings by
three films: Movies for the More Mature. (Ref
26/CE c)
 £2,400, extension to pilot scheme for the Youth
Film Club. (Ref.26/CE)

£7,000

For ongoing maintenance and stock
replenishments for community defibrillators. Ref:
73/CE, a., - 25/01/21 Ref 108 (Council).

TBC, 13/09/21 – agenda item 8 - request to fund
Barrel Organ Theatre Company £2,000 which will
reduce the ‘remaining to allocate’ total to £14,253.

(9028)
Signage –
proposed
allocation of
£3,643
(2021/22)

Committee endorsed to continue improving town centre
signage. Peacock Mews and Friday Street/ Ropa Court
signage completed.

(9055)
Public
Conveniences
£15,122
(2021/22)

To fund ongoing upkeep and maintenance: short and longterm and large repairs/replacement.

(9044)
Christmas
lights
£1,076
(2021/22)

To manage repair, improve infrastructure, and Christmas tree
costs, etc.

 Focus spend on Ryland Mews and Bell Alley in
2019/20, (Ref.12/CE,b)

For ongoing maintenance of the Public
Conveniences. Ref: 73/CE, a. & Ref 108
(Council).

=£1,008
Remaining

£900

£2,400

= £16,253
Remaining
to allocate
Less

=£3,643
Remaining
to allocate

=£15,122
Remaining
to allocate
Less

=£1,076
Remaining
to allocate

Page 96

(9057)
Community
Projects
£26,999
(2021/22)

Committee endorsed its use, to expand community events
programme.






£16,999 for additional expenditure for
events programme = Canal Festival, Band
Concerts & Live TV Screening originally for
financial years 2019/20, 2020/21 &
2021/2022 (Ref. 140/CE and Ref. 23/CE),
now extends spend to 2022/23 due to
interruption of delivery because of Covid.
Ref: 70/CE - 25/01/21 Ref 108 (Council):
£5,000 for the trial of recorded music in the
high street during an appropriate period in
2021. Ref: 70/CE
£5,000 for a Thanksgiving event
date.Ref:70/CE.

TBC, 13/09/21 - agenda item 13 - proposal to
extend the above spend again to include
2023/2024 due to impact of Covid on work
delivery, (i.e. 2022/2023 & 2023/2024).

END

Page 97

Less

£16,999

£5,000

£5,000

=£0
Remaining
to allocate

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 98

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL
CULTURAL AND ECONOMIC SERVICES COMMITTEE – 9 MARCH 2020
WORK PLAN 2021-2022 (INCORPORATING OBJECTIVES 2019-2024)
Cultural and Economic Strategic Objectives for 2019-2024 (from Town Council Five Year Plan 2019-2024)
Overarching Objective 3 – VIBRANCY AND VITALITY OF THE TOWN CENTRE: To continue to support a vibrant town through partnership
working and initiatives including management of the street markets, support for local businesses, town and community promotions and town
centre enhancements.
Objective Objective
ref.no. in
5 Yr Plan
5

Comments

To review waste and recycling operations (Market)

Page 99

To Consider delivery of a Town Ranger service.

18

To promote the creation of a soft play facility within the
town.

19

To identify, promote and celebrate the unique features
and heritage of the Parish to both residents and visitors.

20

To consider taking on additional services, where
practicable and where considered beneficial to the town.
To promote the town centre as a safe and vibrant place
to visit in the evening.

21

22

Consider the provision of town centre Wi-Fi (including
footfall monitoring facility).
Page 1 of 3

Coordination role of Best Bar None (BBN) scheme on behalf of partners was
relinquished 31 March 2020. The scheme continues, led by Central Bedfordshire
Council and the next awards scheme is planned to go live in February 2021
Feb 2021 – BBN scheme postponed due to ongoing Covid-19 restrictions.
Wi-Fi and GeoSence footfall counting systems installed and went ‘live’ on
02/01/2020. Funded for 3yrs (contract concluding in late 2022), through s106 as

Agenda Item 14

17

New Council-wide contract in place.
Feb 2021 – crisp packet recycling box was operational in autumn 2020 however
this stopped as the council’s contractor ceased its recycling service.
Being led by Grounds and Environmental Services & commences in the new
financial year.
Feb 2021 – this objective is included in Council’s Partnership Project List
presented to Partnership Committee. Committee is now requested to review the
list for comment and suggested amendments if applicable at its meeting on 13
September 2021.
Official Town Guide updated in Spring 2019.
Buzzard Trails App. for Living History Trail launched October 2019.
The locally distinctive new Town Centre logo launched 2020.
Historic High St. shopping history will be celebrated in autumn’s Living History
activities.
Feb 2021 – Living History Task & Finish Group set up to review event and
recommendations are presented for Committee’s approval.

Page 100

23

To continue to manage, promote and develop the street
market.

24

To continue to deliver quality community events and
regularly review their scope and delivery.

25

To consider ways to work with town centre businesses
to achieve digital/ on-line commerce options and
promote the town’s shopping/ leisure offer.

26

To consider ways to support the increase in leisure and
personal development opportunities for youth,
incorporating ongoing feedback from young people and
considering suitability of delivery locations for youth
work.

27

To consider ways to support the increase in leisure
opportunities for older people.

27a

To consider the potential for a cultural and community
facility in the town centre.
Page 2 of 3

released from CBC.
Jan 2021 – now entered into year two of the three-year funded scheme.
Ongoing - Annual market activity delivery and work plans in place.
2020 – alternative venue for market in May and returned to High Street in June.
Additional market, ‘Thursday eXtra’ commenced August 2020 to assist casual and
speciality traders unable to fit in the Covid-19 compliant market. This has now
ceased as there is no longer a need.
The market continues to operate within the temporary pedestrianisation space.
The market opening hours are due to change on 1st October 2021 to run 08.30 –
15.00 as per the outcome of the recent review incorporating trader feedback.
Annual review of delivery practices inc. H&S are ongoing. External H&S review
completed in 2019. 2020 – Covid-19 alternative activities delivered throughout
2020.
“021 – band concerts restarted with Covid restrictions which were removed
following changes in government restrictions. They continue into September and
will culminate with the Proms and Picnic in the Park finale. The Big Lunch took
place in the alternative park venue.
Shopping and Services Directory commenced updating in Feb 2020. The draft
version was circulated and then finalised in June/July 2020. Printed versions now
in circulation and bus stop posters updated.
COVID-19 Welcome Back campaign current being delivered.
Feb 2021 - Shop Local LB portal launched Dec 2020. Online LL Directory
launched in 2020.
The Welcome Back Fund builds on the above with promotional activity aimed at
enticing visitors back to the town centre as well as extending promotional activity.
Planned Partnership Committee consultation delayed due to COVID-19.
TACTIC service is currently gathering feedback whilst undertaking outreach
activities.
Feb 2021 – Partnership Committee’s Community Forum confirmed to undertake
consultation. Delivery of the survey is planned for October 2021 with survey data
first being reported to Partnership Committee in December.
Task and Finish group to commence from April 2020 to review current local
activity and to bring recommendations to Committee in Sep 2020.
Feb 2021 - Leighton Linslade Helping Hands web site funded.
Work is ongoing and Committee is asked to decide on the Helping Hands tender
applications at its committee meeting on 13 September .
Feb 2021 – On Council’s Partnership Project list. South Side Task & Finish group
established and reporting to Partnership Committee.

MEETING DATES 2021-2022
Meeting Date
14 June
2021

13 September

Page 101

13 December

14 March
2022

Regular Updates
Market Sub Committee
minutes
Older People Sub Committee
Minutes
Budget
TACTIC
Events
Service updates
Market Sub Committee
minutes
Older People Sub Committee
Minutes
Budget
TACTIC
Events
Service updates
Market Sub Committee
minutes
Older People Sub Committee
Minutes
Budget
TACTIC
Events
Service updates
Market Sub Committee
minutes
Older People Sub Committee
Minutes
Budget
TACTIC
Events
Service updates

Page 3 of 3

Fixed Deadline items
 Christmas Lighting Contract
 Decision on Christmas Festival (Events
Update Report)

Other anticipated discussion items
 Living History Task & Finish Group recommendations




Community Events proposals for
2022/23

 Youth Film Club - 2nd phase update. TBC
 Partnership Project List
 55up Technology Helpline Tender




Future Budgets 2022/23.
55up grant applications.

 Receive results from Partnership Committee’s
Community Forum’s Youth Survey

 2022/23 Draft Committee work plan.
 55up grant applications.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102

Leighton-Linslade Partnership Project List
The below aspirations were adopted by Leighton-Linslade Town Council at its meeting held on 30 September 2019, or were contained within Big Plan II – the
parish plan for 2011-2017, adopted by Council on 18 April 2011.
Description
Culture, Heritage & Tourism
1
Cultural and community facility

Page 103

Source

Comment January 2020

Council resolution
30/9/2019
& Big Plan II 2010
Council resolution
30/9/2019

This is a long term aspiration which might come forward in plans for future development of land
south of the High Street.
Big Plan II contained an aspiration for a better venue for Arts & Drama and a conference room.
A soft play facility of sufficient size to be useable by a wide range of age groups or needs requires
a building of suitable size and height, ideally in an easily accessible location or with car parking. To
date no such location has come forward.
Work with partners to implement the 2012 Development Brief for the south side of the High Street
and specifically, to attract retailers that the town lacks and increase local employment
opportunities.
LLTC has asked CBC to present an action plan for development of the south side in Feb 2020.
2012 Development Brief for land at Bridge Meadow but land not in local authority ownership.
Potential for marina development by A505.

Soft play facility

3

Town centre and retail
improvements

Big Plan II 2010

4

Utilise the town’s waterfronts for a
recreational development and
support inclusion of a small canal
boat marina/quay
Continue to promote
improvements to available hotel
accommodation.
Provision of a Tourist Information
Centre in the town centre.

Big Plan II 2010

5
6

Social Infrastructure
7
Improved accommodation for
TACTIC
8
Vandyke Road youth club
9

Additional cemetery land

Big Plan II 2010

The Swan Hotel refurbished and reopened in 2011.
Possibility of hotel inclusion on land south of the High Street development.

Big Plan II 2010

Interim solutions include leaflet racks at Library and multi-storey car park.
Town centre free WiFi launched 2020 will provide visitors with fast and free access to information.

Council resolution
30/9/2019
Council resolution
30/9/2019

The Hockliffe Street building, although centrally located, is suitable for limited uses.

Council resolution
30/9/2019
& Big Plan II 2010

This facility is owned and managed by Central Bedfordshire Council. However, the Town Council
continues to review services for young people within the parish through its Teenage Advice and
Information Centre.
The Town Council has investigated and considered a number of options for increasing its burial
capacity.

Agenda Item 15

2

10
11
12
13
14

Page 104

15
16

17
18

Ensure police resources deployed
locally keep pace with the town’s
population.
Continue to support the
implementation of flood protection
measures for Clipstone Brook.
Support the provision of local
school facilities

Big Plan II 2010

Ensure the Children’s Centre on
Vandyke Rd is expanded to cope
with demand.
Employment land on eastern
urban extension

Big Plan II 2010

Support evolution of the town
library as a community facility
offering a range of services
Ensure land is set aside in major
developments for future
community needs such as leisure
& recreation.
Ensure social and community
infrastructure is available in first
phase of future developments.
Ensure any Central Bedfordshire
planning strategy incorporates
many of the Big Plan
requirements deemed essential
for future growth.

Big Plan II 2010
Big Plan II 2010

Big Plan II 2010

Land allocated for this purpose in the planning applications for the eastern urban extension are not
within the parish boundary & its suitability for this purpose is not known.
Operational policing decisions rest with the Chief Constable of Bedfordshire Police.
The Town Council’s community safety budget and Operation Dodford framework agreement
provide a mechanism for ongoing communications with the Police.
Measures implemented by the Environment Agency and flood risk has been downgraded.
Situation to be monitored, particularly given the development on land east of the town.
Central Bedfordshire Council has statutory responsibility and is developing a Schools For the
Future programme.
Potential change from 3-tier to 2-tier school system under consultation.
This rests with Central Bedfordshire Council.
LLTC supports a number of initiatives for young children including offering subsidised facilities to
the Mentmore Under Fives Playgroup and the Pages Play Café.
Big Plan states aspirations to: a) Ensure that designated employment land on the plans for East of
L-L will use local apprentices who have been unable to find work; b) secure mixed use
commercial/industrial/office development; c) provide starter units for small businesses.

Big Plan II 2010

Whilst land has been designated for employment uses, these aspirations will be dependent upon
market forces and third parties.
This rests with Central Bedfordshire Council which has responsibility for the Library service.

Big Plan II 2010

Ongoing through the planning process.

Big Plan II 2010

S.106 developer contributions determined and trigger points set by Central Bedfordshire Council.

Big Plan II 2010

LLTC continues to review and comment upon emerging Central Bedfordshire planning strategy and
has made representations in respect of the draft Local Plan.
Big Plan II outlines proposals for the provision of community facilities including shops, healthcare
facilities, bus stops, play areas & other recreational opportunities, as well as supporting
sustainability in terms of energy and transport.

Green Infrastructure, Sports & Leisure
19 Skate park improvements
20

Additional allotment land

21

Leighton-Linslade Green Wheel

22

Page 105

Restoration of Henry Finch
Memorial Fountain in Linslade
Recreation Ground
23 Secure a new leisure centre as
part of the development to the
East of the town
24 Provision of clubhouse and
launching site for Canoe Club
25 Continue to search for a suitable
site for a club quality athletics
track & facilities
26 Consider potential for a woodland
cemetery, adventure play area,
campsite & parking at Rushmere
Country Park.
27 Continue to restore sand pits in
and around town to public open
space.
28 Continue to promote greening and
wildflower planting.
Sustainability
29 Recycling of cups and glasses at
events
30 Support development of a small
wind farm close to the town to
supply a proportion of local
electricity needs.

Council resolution
30/9/2019
Council resolution
30/9/2019
& Big Plan II 2010
Council resolution
30/9/2019
& Big Plan II 2010
Council resolution
30/9/2019

The current skate park is nearing the end of its useful life. Being located on a flood plain, options
for its replacement are limited. Demand for this facility needs to be ascertained and options
explored.
The Town Council currently has minimal waiting lists but will assess likely future demand.
A long term partnership ambition through the Ouzel Valley Park Steering Group, the revised Green
Wheel Masterplan is currently under consultation.
LLTC purchased Peace Meadow to secure this green space.
External funding was sought as part of the 2018/19 improvement programme for Linslade
Recreation Ground, but was unsuccessful.

Big Plan II 2010

The Principal Authority through its Leisure Strategy is working toward the delivery of a
commensurate level of appropriate facilities sufficient to meet existing and future need.

Big Plan II 2010

No suitable site or funding has as yet been identified.

Big Plan II 2010

The Principal Authority by way of its Leisure Strategy is aware of this aspiration. Any future leisure
centre site should where possible include provision for athletics.

Big Plan II 2010

Central Bedfordshire Council and The Greensand Trust co own and manage the site.
LLTC input through Rushmere Parishes Group and Ouzel Valley Park Steering Group.
Car parking extension completed and play provision continues to develop.

Big Plan II 2010

Central Bedfordshire Council liaises with quarry operators and land owners on this.
LLTC kept advised as part of the Sandpit Steering Group which meets on a quarterly basis.

Big Plan II 2010

LLTC has a service level agreement with South Bedfordshire Friends of the Earth which includes
the management of several wildflower and bee friendly sites on LLTC owned land.

Council resolution
30/9/2019
Big Plan II 2010

The Town Council will encourage traders and suppliers at its events to move towards more
sustainable options in line with the Council’s environmental ambitions.
One wind turbine established; second proposed. Solar farm now operating just outside the Parish.

31

Promote renewable energy and
sustainable living to residents.
32 Campaign for improvements in
bus services and community
transport services
33 Consider a park and stride
scheme for rail commuters.
34 Continued investment in the
Cycling network &
encouragement of increased
cycling
Health and Social Care
35 Healthcare provision

Big Plan II 2010
Big Plan II 2010
Big Plan II 2010
Big Plan II 2010

LLTC seeks to promote activities undertaken by local groups in respect of sustainability and in
2019 adopted a set of environmental ambitions.
Ongoing through groups such as the Southern development Exemplar steering group.
The Strategic Transport Team at Central Bedfordshire Council is aware of the added value a park
and stride facility would bring to the parish and is seeking ways to try and realise this.
The Plan contains aims such as creation of new routes, promotion of cycling, safer routes to
schools, school travel plans, maintaining an up to date map of local cycle routes.
Central Bedfordshire Council is now appointing a designated Cycling Officer for the area.

Big Plan II 2010

The Plan outlines the wish for a community hospital and an increase in the number and capacity of
GP Practices to keep apace with the town’s growing population.

Page 106

The CBC East of Leighton Linslade Framework Plan identifies land for potential healthcare facilities
and the 2015 CBC Infrastructure Plan identifies a project cost for a GP surgery. The size and
location of said facility is the subject of on-going work by delivery partners. The Framework Plan
also makes reference to the Big Plan and its successor document.
LLTC has formed a Health Services Task and Finish Group to encourage progression of healthcare
provision proposals to meet the ever-growing needs of the town and its surrounding area. Once the
group has agreed its objectives, these will then be shared with the relevant delivery partners.
The future provision of a healthcare facility/hub has been an agenda item on previous Partnership
Committee meetings and remains a town wide priority.

Document endorsed by Leighton-Linslade Town Council 28 September 2020

